City of Apopka
Planning Commission

Meeting Agenda
August 12, 2014
5:01 PM @ CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS

.  CALL TO ORDER

If you wish to appear before the Planning Commission, please submit a “Notice of
Intent to Speak” card to the Recording Secretary.

[I. OPENING AND INVOCATION

lll. APPROVAL OF MINUTES:

1 Approve minutes of the Planning Commission meeting held July 8, 2014, at 5:01 p.m.
V. PUBLIC HEARING:

1. VARIANCE - Loaves & Fishes, Inc., 206 E. 8th Street — A variance of the
Apopka Code of Ordinances, Part Ill, Land Development Code, Article I,
Sections 2.02.02.a. and 2.02.15.F. to allow for a reduction in the front and side
yard setbacks.

V. SITE PLANS:

1. FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN — Taco Bell — Owned by BB Hobbs Company —
Cobblestone Partners, Inc.; engineer is Florida Engineering Group, c/o Sam
Sebaali, P.E., LEED® AP; and property located at 1429 West Orange Blossom
Trail. (Parcel ID No. 05-21-28-0000-00-001)

VI. OLD BUSINESS:
VII. NEW BUSINESS:




Page 2

VIIl. ADJOURNMENT:

kkkkhkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkhkkkkkkkkkkkkkhkkhkkkkkkkkkkkkkhkkhkkkkkkkkkkhkkhkkhkkkkkkkkhkkhkkhkkhkkkkkkkkkkkhkkhkkhkkkkkkkkkkkkkhkkkx

All interested parties may appear and be heard with respect to this agenda. Please be advised that, under state law, if you decide to appeal
any decision made by the City Council with respect to any matter considered at this meeting or hearing, you will need a record of the
proceedings, and that, for such purpose, you may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, which record includes a
testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based. The City of Apopka does not provide a verbatim record.

In accordance with the American with Disabilities Act (ADA), persons with disabilities needing a special accommodation to participate in any
of these proceedings should contact the City Clerk's Office at 120 East Main Street, Apopka, FL 32703, telephone (407) 703-1704, no less
than 48 hours prior to the proceeding.




Page 3
Backup material for agenda item:

1 Approve minutes of the Planning Commission meeting held July 8, 2014, at 5:01 p.m.




MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING HELD ON JULY 8, 2014, AT 5:01 P.M. IN
THE CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS, APOPKA, FLORIDA.

MEMBERS PRESENT: Steve Hooks, Melvin Birdsong, Ben Dreiling, James Greene, Teresa Roper, and
Robert Ryan

ABSENT: Mallory Walters, Orange County Public Schools (Non-voting)

OTHERS PRESENT: R. Jay Davoll, P.E. — Community Development Director/City Engineer, David Moon,
AICP - Planning Manager, Ken Stoltenberg, Holly Swanson, Jimmy Dunn, Jeff Chaffee, Ed Veldzquez, John
Herbert, P.E., Lisa Hill, Ed Hampden, John Boudreaux, Richard Withers, Scott Kelley, Tom Sullivan, Heather
Briggs, Clarence Coston, Chuck Ebersole, Suzanne Kidd, Anthony Raynor, Michael Dinkel, Pam Toler, Richard
Simon, and Jeanne Green — Community Development Department Office Manager/Recording Secretary.

OPENING AND INVOCATION: Chairperson Hooks called the meeting to order and asked for a moment of
silent meditation. The Pledge of Allegiance followed.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES: Chairperson Hooks asked if there were any corrections or additions to the June
10, 2014 minutes. With no one having any corrections or additions, he asked for a motion to approve the
minutes of the Planning Commission meeting held June 10, 2014.

Motion: James Greene made a motion to approve the Planning Commission minutes from the June
10, 2014 meeting, and Teresa Roper seconded the motion. Aye votes were cast by Steve
Hooks, Melvin Birdsong, Ben Dreiling, James Greene, Teresa Roper, and Robert Ryan (6-
0).

AMENDMENT TO THE CODE OF ORDINANCES, PART IIl, LAND DEVELOPMENT CODE,
ARTICLE 11l — OVERLAY DISTRICTS — David Moon, AICP, Planning Manager, stated there is new
language and revisions made based on the discussion at the Planning Commission workshop.

The first new language included is in Section 3.04.06.6 - Development Standards that reads “Alleyways. All
alleyways shall be placed within a separate tract owned by a homeowners association...” This amendment was
to clarify the alley location so that a developer could not put the alley in an easement and then claim it as part of
the lot area.

The second new language appears in Section 3.04.06.14 - Development Standards that reads “Any portion of a
vehicle parked within a driveway shall not extend into an area of an alley, street, sidewalk, or public right-of-
way. Vehicles parked within a driveway located on a residential lot shall be oriented perpendicular to the street
with the front or back of the vehicle facing a garage door. This requlation shall also be incorporated into the
homeowners’ association code, covenant and restriction document. This amendment was added based on the
site visits conducted by the Planning Commission members and concerns expressed about cars parking across
the driveway or angled in the driveway to fit in the driveway. This language clarifies that issue and help to
prevent it from occurring.

He asked for clarification on the following two sections:
Section 3.04.06 - Development Standards
10. Garage Setbacks

b. Townhomes.
Front-entry or side-entry garage is not allowed.

2.) Rear-entry garage (as measured from the rear property line):




MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING HELD ON July 8, 2014, AT 5:01 P.M.

(a) Garage placed ten or fewer feet from rear property line: minimum of five (5)
feet.

(b) Garage placed more than ten feet from rear property line: minimum of twenty-
two (22) feet.

Mr. Moon stated that he received a comment that the minimum of twenty-two feet was to only apply to single
family homes and duplexes but not townhomes. Townhomes would only be subject to the ten foot (10) foot
minimum setback if accessed from an alley.

Chairperson Hooks stated that the intent of that was to keep the driveways long enough for the largest standard
vehicle that is being sold today. If it didn’t fit then the driveway has got to be ten (10) foot or less so it would
not fit and then the new section 3.04.06.14 would apply.

In response to a question by Chairperson Hooks, Mr. Moon stated that for single family homes and duplexes
they do not have the ten foot driveway option as with the townhomes. Their rear entry garage setback is a
minimum of 22 feet. For townhomes, there are two options for the rear entry garage. One is the garage is
placed ten or fewer feet from the rear property line then the garage setback is a minimum of five feet and a
maximum of ten feet. If the garage is placed more than ten feet from the property line then it has to be setback a
minimum of 22 feet similar to a single family home.

Chairperson Hooks stated that was the intent.

Mr. Moon stated the second point needing clarification is:

Section 3.04.08 — Architectural Appearance and Building Design

1. Minimum Residential Livable Area. No less than seventy-five percent (75%) of all dwelling units,
regardless of residential type, shall have a minimum livable area of 1,700 square feet or greater. No
more than twenty-five percent (25%) of single family and duplex dwelling units shall have a livable area
less than 1,700 square feet. The minimum livable area of single family home or duplex unit shall not be
less than 1,500 square feet, and not less than 1,350 square feet for a townhome unit.

Mr. Moon stated that the language states that no less than 75% of all dwelling units, regardless of residential
type, shall have a minimum livable area of 1,700 square feet or greater. He said that it was brought to his
attention that the 75% requirement only applied to single family homes and that townhomes are not included as
part of that 75%.

Chairperson Hooks said he believed the intent was that the minimum living area of 1,700 square feet applied to
single family homes because we did not want a lot of real small homes. Townhomes is a different product.

The Commission agreed that the intent was that the 1,700 square foot minimum living area applied only to
single family lots.

Motion: Ben Dreiling made a motion to recommend approval of the amendment to Section 3.04.08.1
be changed to “No less than seventy-five percent (75%) of all single family dwelling units;
regardless—of residential-type, shall have a minimum livable area of 1,700 square feet or
greater.”, and Teresa Roper seconded the motion. Aye votes were cast by Steve Hooks,
Melvin Birdsong, Ben Dreiling, James Greene, Teresa Roper, and Robert Ryan (6-0).




MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING HELD ON July 8, 2014, AT 5:01 P.M.

Mr. Moon stated that staff recommends acceptance of the points identified in the draft language and acceptance
of the Small Lot Overlay Zoning District language.

Chairperson Hooks stated that typically when referring to the local post office you would say the Local Post
Master. He requested that in Section 3.04.07.6 of the Design Guidelines, that the two references to the local U.S.
Postal Service Office be changed to the local Post Master.

Mr. Moon stated that will be considered a scriveners’ error and a motion will not be required.

Chairperson Hooks stated that with regard to Section 3.04.11 — Maintenance and Community Management, the
intent was for the City to have some authority in this document to force the homeowners association to comply
with what is in their homeowners’ documents when they are incorporated. He asked if staff had a chance to
speak with the new City attorney regarding this section.

Mr. Moon stated that since the new attorney has just this week signed a contract, he had not had an opportunity
to bring this question to his attention. Based on the request of the Planning Commission he will get with the
prior to the amendment going to City Council.

Chairperson Hooks stated that when you typically refer to the local post office you would be referring to the
local post master. He suggested that Section 3.04.07.7 - Design Guidelines be revised to change the two local
post office references to the local post master.

In response to questions by Chairperson Hooks, Mr. Moon stated that would be a scrivener’s error and would
not require a motion. He stated that since the new City Attorney was just hired, he had not had a chance to
speak with him about Section 3.04.11 — Maintenance and Community Management. He assured the
Commission that prior to this being taken to City Council he would ask the City Attorney to review that section
to ensure the City would be able to hold the homeowners association accountable for the maintenance of the

property.

In response to a question by Mr. Moon, Chairman Hooks stated that the Commission did not have a problem
with staff moving forward with the ordinance so long as the City Attorney had a chance to review Section
3.04.11 prior to presentation to the City Council.

Chairperson Hooks opened the meeting for public hearing.

In response to a suggestion by Suzanne Kidd, Mr. Moon stated that by changing the language in Section
3.04.07.7 - Design Guidelines from “uniform” to “identical” could create problems in the future for the property
owner or homeowners association. In the future, it may prove difficult to find an identical mailbox because it is
no longer available. Whereas there is flexibility with the word “uniform” because a similar mailbox could be
used.

In response to questions by Chairperson Hooks, Mr. Moon stated that the developer would be required to
include mailboxes in the final development plan. They would present a detail of the mailbox as part of the
application package.

Mr. Greene stated that language could be included in the homeowners' association covenants, restrictions, and
codes, as is included in the Rock Springs Ridge HOA documents, that requires the property owner to be
pnsible for replacing the mailbox and ensuring it is uniform.

6

3



MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING HELD ON July 8, 2014, AT 5:01 P.M.

Ms. Roper stated that identical would require a “like to like” mailbox which could be difficult to obtain in the
future; whereas uniform would be one that is as similar to the previous mailbox as possible.

Ed Hampden, Tallman Development Company, 604 S. Lake Sybelia Drive, Maitland, suggested clarifying
Section 3.04.06. - Development Standards - Housing Types and Mix regarding the percentage of 50 foot wide
lots as follows: “..., at least one-half (%2) of the single family/duplex lots shall have a minimum width equal to or
greater than fifty (50) feet.” He stated that without this change this section could conceivably be construed to
mean townhomes as well and that will throw the overall mix of small lots out of proportion.

In response to a question by Chairperson Hooks, Mr. Moon stated that it would be repetitive but would not
change or hurt the section.

Motion: Ben Dreiling made a motion to recommend approval of the amendment to Section 3.04.06.3
- Development Standards - Housing Types and Mix as follows: “..., at least one-half (%2) of
the single family and/or duplex lots shall have a minimum width equal to or greater than
fifty (50) feet.”, and James Greene seconded the motion. Aye votes were cast by Steve
Hooks, Melvin Birdsong, Ben Dreiling, James Greene, Teresa Roper, and Robert Ryan (6-
0).

With no one else wishing to speak, Chairperson Hooks closed the public hearing.

Motion: James Greene made a motion to recommend approval of the amendment to the City of
Apopka Code of Ordinances, Part 111, Land Development Code, Article 111 — Overlay
Zones to add Section 3.04.00 - Small Lot Overlay Zoning District, and Teresa Roper
seconded the motion. Aye votes were cast by Steve Hooks, Melvin Birdsong, Ben Dreiling,
James Greene, Teresa Roper, and Robert Ryan (6-0).

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN - LARGE SCALE - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT - APOPKA
CLEAR LAKE INVESTMENTS, LLC - AVIAN POINTE — Mr. Moon stated this is a request to
recommend approval of the Large Scale Future Land Use amendment from Residential Low (0-5 du/ac) to
Residential Medium (0-10 du/ac) for the property owned by Apopka Clear Lake Investments LLC, c/o Ken
Stoltenberg. The engineering firm is Hendra & Associates, c/o Eric J. Hendra, P.E. The proposed is located east
of S.R. 429, south of Peterson Road, and north of Lust Road. The existing use is vacant land and the proposed
use is Avian Pointe, a residential community with a mix of single-family homes, apartments, and townhomes
with residential amenities. The existing maximum allowable development is 454 units and the proposed future
land use would allow a maximum allowable development of 948 Units. The tract size is 94.76 acres. The staff
report and its findings are to be incorporated into and made a part of the minutes.

Mr. Moon stated that Parcel No. 07-21-28-0000-00-002 (89.47 +/- acres) was annexed into the City of Apopka
on December 17, 1997, through the adoption of Ordinance No. 1129; and Parcel No. 07-21-28-0000-00-023
(5.29 +/- acres) was annexed into the City of Apopka on January 7, 2004, through the adoption of Ordinance
No. 1621.

The applicant requests to assign a Residential Medium Density Future Land Use Designation to the two above
referenced parcels totaling approximately 94.76 acres. An application has also been submitted to the City
requesting a zoning category of Planned Unit Development for these same two parcels as well as the parcel
abutting the northwest corner of the subject property. This third parcel, owned by W.D. Long Family Farms
tal is not part of the future land use amendment application and will retain its Residential Low Density
7 Pential Land Use Designation.




MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING HELD ON July 8, 2014, AT 5:01 P.M.

After the Future Land Use Amendment for the 94.57 acres has been transmitted to and reviewed by the Florida
Department of Economic Opportunities and other state agencies for their review, the applicant will request a
Planning Unit Development zoning and master site plan approval for the two parcels owned by Apopka Clear
Lake Investment and the one parcel owned by W.D. Long Family Farms et.al.

The intent of the applicant, Apopka Clear Lake Investments, is to develop a residential community with a mix of
single-family homes, apartments, and townhomes with residential amenities that include a bike trail that allows
for connection to the Lake Apopka Loop Trail, community resort-style clubhouse and swimming pools, and a
parks and open space system. In addition, the applicant desires to reserve a small area of the master site plan for
flexible use zone that can accommodate one or more of the following uses: school or day care, boutique hotel,
or a senior residential housing (such as an assisted living facility or age-restricted housing).

The applicant will present a proposed PUD master site plan for all three parcels at the transmittal hearing. This
master site plan is currently under review by the Development Review Committee. Between the transmittal
hearing and the final adoption hearing for the Future Land Use Amendment, the applicant will finalize the
master site plan for zoning hearings. At the time the adoption hearing is held, the PUD zoning and master site
plan will appear on the same hearing as the future land use amendment.

In conjunction with state requirements, staff has analyzed the proposed amendment for Medium and determined
that adequate public facilities exist to support this land use change as depicted in the Land Use Report.

After the transmittal hearing, the applicant will submit to Orange County Public School an application for
school capacity determination. Prior to the adoption hearing for the Future Land Use amendment, the applicant
must obtain an approved school capacity determination or school capacity mitigation agreement from the
Orange County School Board.

The JPA requires the City to notify the County 30 days before any public hearing or advisory board. The City
properly notified Orange County on June 10, 2014.

The Development Review Committee recommends approval to transmit a change in Future Land Use from
Residential Low (0-5 du/ac) for approximately 89.47 acres and Agriculture for approximately 5.29 acres to
Residential Medium Density (0-10 du/ac) for the property owned by Apopka Clear Lake Investments LLC, c/o
Ken Stoltenberg, subject to the information and findings in the staff report.

This item is considered quasi-judicial. The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated into and made a
part of the minutes of this meeting.

In response to questions by Mr. Dreiling, Mr. Moon stated that Peterson Road is a substandard right-of-way
because of the corner in the road. The road bends but it appears that a part of the pavement may actually be on
private property because the right-of-way is square and the road curves. At the present time the City has no
plans in its five-year scheduled capital improvements to construct Peterson Road or a road from Peterson Road
south to this property or to improve the road from Peterson north to West Orange Avenue. The City is not
responsible for the construction of that roadway because it is not in the five-year scheduled capital
improvements plan. That is the reason that staff is recommending a developer’s agreement between the City
and the developer be established prior to the final hearing on the medium density land use. That development
agreement would obligate the developer to construct or reconstruct that roadway to the north to West Orange
Avenue without a burden to the City. They are obligated to pay transportation impact fees. Some or all of the
road improvements may qualify for credits towards those impact fees. The impact fees may or may not pay for
e road improvements but it would be the developer’s responsibility to cover the difference. The impact
8 lcome to the City.




MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING HELD ON July 8, 2014, AT 5:01 P.M.

Tom Sullivan, Esqg., Gray Robinson Law Firm, 301 East Pine Street, Suite 1400, Orlando, stated he was the
representative for Apopka Clear Lake Investments, LLC. He introduced Ken Stoltenberg of Apopka Clear Lake
Investments LLC and Holly Swanson the architect. He presented a PowerPoint of the proposed Avian Pointe
development and the possible amenities that could be provided.

Mr. Sullivan stated that the applicant will be pursuing a developer’s agreement with the City for access to the
north of the site up to West Orange Avenue.

Chairperson Hooks opened the meeting for public hearing.

Richard Withers, 2436 Wyndam Bay Place, Apopka, expressed concerns and opposition to the proposed high
density development. He stated that he and the other residents in the area purchased their homes in that area
because it was quiet. He stated that the land use and zoning should stay as it is and that only single family
homes be built on the property with comparable density, setbacks, and buffer requirements as are found in Clear
Lake and Lake Heiniger Estates.

In response to a question by Chairperson Hooks, Mr. Withers stated that he was not representing the
homeowners association but that they would be getting involved as this project goes along.

Chairperson Hooks stated that based on Mr. Sullivan’s presentation the number of units being proposed for the
site is an increase of only 248 units from what the applicant would be allowed to develop.

In response to questions by John Boudreaux, 2529 Wyndam Bay Place, Apopka, Chairperson Hooks stated that
the Lust Grant property is not being included in the future land use amendment. That part of the site has already
been approved as low density for single family residences. The developer has increased the side yard setbacks
from 5 feet to 7.5 feet. It will be a part of the entire development.

Richard Simon, 62 Sedona Cove Drive, Apopka, stated that he agreed with the same concerns and oppositions
that Mr. Withers presented.

With no one else wishing to speak, Chairperson Hooks closed the public hearing.

Mr. Moon stated the schedule for the large scale future land use amendment is as follows: On August 6, 2014
the ordinance will go to the City Council for first reading and a request to authorize transmittal to the
Department of Economic Opportunity and several other state agencies for their review. The state will have sixty
(60) days to review the item. Once a response is received, the City then has 180 days to adopt the amendment.
At the time the large scale future land use amendment is adopted, the zoning ordinance, with the master plan,
will be presented to the City Council for adoption.

Motion: Ben Dreiling made a motion to recommend approval of the Avian Pointe Large Scale
Future Land Use Amendment from Residential Low (0-5 du/ac) to Residential Medium (0-
10 du/ac) Agricultural Homestead (1 du/10 ac) to Conservation (1 du/20 ac) for property
owned by Apopka Clear Lake Investments, LLC, subject to the Future Land Use
Amendment being brought back to the Planning Commission prior to adoption by the City
Council when the Change of Zoning and Master Site Plan are presented, and the
information and findings in the staff report, and Melvin Birdsong seconded the motion.
Aye votes were cast by Steve Hooks, Melvin Birdsong, Ben Dreiling, James Greene, Teresa
Roper, and Robert Ryan (6-0).

In response to questions by Mr. Withers, Chairperson Hooks stated the Planning Commission makes a
mmendation to the City Council that they should send it up for review. The City Council does not have to

9

6



MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING HELD ON July 8, 2014, AT 5:01 P.M.

take the recommended action. This item will be presented to the City Council on their regularly scheduled
meeting on August 6, 2014 at 1:30 p.m. in the Council Chambers. If the Council accepts the first reading and
authorizes the transmittal of the large scale future land use amendment, staff will transmit the amendment to the
staff for their review. The state has 60 days to review the proposed amendment. The Planning Commission has
included in their motion to recommend transmittal of the amendment the request that the future land use change
come back to the Commission with the zoning and the master plan/preliminary development plan. The City will
be obliged to return it to the Planning Commission. He stated that the concerns regarding buffers and setbacks
should be brought up at the time of the change of zoning/Master Plan is presented to the Commission.

In response to a question by Pam Toler, 2084 Tournament Drive, Apopka, Mr. Moon stated that an
environmental study will be required as a part of the site plan submittal.

CHANGE IN ZONING/MASTER SITE PLAN/PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN - RAYNOR
SHINE RECYCLING SOLUTIONS, LLC — Mr. Moon stated this is a request to recommend approval of the
Change in Zoning from “County” I-4 (ZIP) and “City” I-1 to “City” Planned Unit Development (PUD/I-2) for
the property owned by Raynor Apopka Land Management, LLC. The applicant/engineering firm is American
Civil Engineering Co., c/o John Herbert, P.E. The property is located at 100 & 126 Hermit Smith Road
(southern terminus of Hermit Smith Road). The existing use is Vacant Land, warehouse, office and the
proposed use is a mulch operation. The current zoning is. The tract size is 19.4 +/- acres. The existing
maximum allowable development is 507,038 sg. ft. and the proposed maximum allowable development is
507,038 sq. ft. The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated into and made a part of the minutes.

Mr. Moon stated Parcel No. 01-21-27-0000-00-026 (15.25 +/- acres) was annexed into the City of Apopka on
November 1, 2006, through the adoption of Ordinance No. 1877. Parcel No. 01-21-27-0000-00-080 (4.15 +/-
acres) was annexed into the City of Apopka on February 2, 2005, through the adoption of Ordinance No. 1733.
The proposed Change of Zoning is being requested by the applicant, Raynor Apopka Land Management, LLC.

The zoning application covers approximately 19.4 +/- acres. The property owner intends to use the site for a
mulch production manufacturing operation. This use involves the following activities: heavy outdoor mulching
equipment, outdoor storage of raw materials, large trucks entering and leaving the property with raw materials
(removed or harvested trees or tree limbs) or finished product (landscape mulch). An office use will occur at the
site for on-site management of operations and for business sales. The office use is ancillary to the muich
production operation. Based on the storage of outdoor raw material as well as a manufacturing operation that
does not occur within an enclosed building, the proposed use meets the intent of the -2 zoning category. Both
parcels have been acquired by and under legal ownership of the applicant. The smaller of the two parcels,
Parcel Number 01-21-27-0000-00-080, is approximately 4.15 acres has not been assigned a City zoning
category but currently retains a County zoning category of 1-4 Industrial. The County’s I-4 zoning category is
similar to the City’s I-2 zoning category. The larger parcel, Parcel Number 01-21-27-0000-00-026, is
approximately 15.25 acres and has a City I-1 zoning assigned to it. The proposed use does not meet the intent of
the 1-1 zoning category and requires 1-2 zoning.

The applicant originally sought I-2 zoning for the subject property. However, the City’s planning staff
determined that many of the uses proposed under 1-2 zoning are too intensive considering the predominant land
uses in the surrounding area are zoned for I-1, conservation, or agriculture. However, the mulch production use,
as proposed, is a use that planning staff considers to be compatible with the surrounding area. Taking into
consideration the opinion of the Planning staff, the applicant agreed to apply for a PUD zoning that will limit the
use of the subject property to only the mulch production operation and any related ancillary uses, as well as any
es currently allowed.

10




MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING HELD ON July 8, 2014, AT 5:01 P.M.

In conjunction with state requirements, staff has analyzed the proposed amendment and determined that
adequate public facilities exist to support this change of zoning as depicted in the Zoning Report.

The PUD recommendations are that the zoning classification of the following described property be designated
as Planned Unit Development (PUD\I-2), as defined in the Apopka Land Development Code, and with the
following Master Plan provisions are subject to the following zoning provisions:

A

11

The zoning and uses permitted within the PUD district for the subject property shall be:

1.

Use of the subject property will be limited to the manufacturing and production of mulch with
outdoor storage of raw materials and with outdoor manufacturing operations. All outdoor storage
and outdoor manufacturing operations shall be located within a screened area not visible from
adjacent properties or streets. Outdoor mulch manufacturing and the outdoor storage of raw
materials are the only I-2 uses that are allowed.

Any I-1 or C-3 permitted use is allowed.

C-2, C-1, CN, or PO/I permitted uses will not be allowed as a primary use. Any office use shall
be associated with the industrial activity occurring at the subject site.

Any use of the property other than the permitted uses described above, shall require an
amendment to the PUD through the zoning process.

Overnight parking of trucks or other large vehicles shall only occur within the boundaries of the
Master Site Plan and within areas so designated on said Plan. No overnight parking of trucks
will be allowed within the office parking lots. No parking of any vehicle will occur within any
roadway easement running within the subject property or abutting the eastern property line.

Outdoor storage of raw materials shall only occur at approved locations denoted within the
Master Site Plan.
All mulching equipment shall only be placed in the areas denoted on the Master Site Plan.

No parking of any vehicle or truck or outdoor storage shall occur within any landscape buffer
area appearing on the Master Site Plan.

Development standards and conditions required of any development the PUD district for the subject
property shall be:

Building elevations will be provided at time of a Final Development Plan application.

1.

Prior to commencing any development or construction activity at the subject property, a
development agreement shall be approved by the City and recorded to require dedication of the
eastern ten-feet of the subject property to the City of Apopka within thirty-days from the date that
the property owner receives written notification from the city engineer.

Maximum height of any building, mulch conveyor belts, manufacturing equipment, raw material
piles are not to exceed thirty-five feet from the finished ground level.



MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING HELD ON July 8, 2014, AT 5:01 P.M.

3. All perimeter landscape areas shall be protected from vehicle encroachment by curbing or wheel
stops.
C. If a Final Development Plan associated with the PUD district has not been approved by the City within

two years after approval of these Master Plan provisions, the approval of the Master Plan provisions will
expire. At such time, the City Council may:

1. Permit a single six-month extension for submittal of the required Preliminary Development Plan;

2. Allow the PUD zoning designation to remain on the property pending resubmittal of new Master
Plan provisions and any conditions of approval; or

3. Rezone the property to a more appropriate zoning classification.

4. Unless otherwise addressed within the PUD development standards, the 1-1 zoning standards will
apply to the subject property.

The proposed Planned Unit Development (PUD/I-2) zoning designation is consistent with the Industrial (0.60
FAR) future land use designation and the proposed use of the property. Site development cannot exceed the
intensity allowed by the Future Land Use policies.

Because this change of zoning represents a change to a non-residential designation, notification of Orange
County Public Schools is not required.

The JPA requires the City to notify the County 30 days before any public hearing or advisory board. The City
properly notified Orange County on June 11, 2014.

The applicant proposed the following waiver requests. These waivers are provided for information purposes.
As the applicant as applied for a PUD zoning, these waivers will be listed as Development Standards approved
for the subject property. Thus, the below waivers are considered to be additional development standards that
will be incorporated in the PUD ordinance.

1. LDC, Section 2.02.16. G.1. - Areas adjacent to all road rights-of-way shall provide eight (8) foot
masonry wall within a minimum 25-foot landscaped bufferyard.  Applicant is requesting a waiver to
allow a 10-foot landscaped bufferyard due to the adjacent property being zoned I-1 and for security
purposes.

In response to questions by Mr. Dreiling, Mr. Moon stated that a public right of way is owned and managed by
the local government and in this case, that would be the City of Apopka. A private easement, or private road, is
owned by the property owners that benefit from the easement and then the easement is granted to others to travel
upon it. Besides travel it could be used for the right to have water and sewer lines travel through it. The City
does have easement rights for water and sewer line that run through a portion of the adjacent property.

In response to a question by Chairperson Hooks, Mr. Moon stated that Raynor Shine does not have access to the

Hermit Smith Road public right-of-way. They have provided easement documents that show they have rights to

use the 40 foot easement on the Boughan Brothers property. Their attorney prepared a document and submitted
12 I>RC for its review to demonstrate they had the right to use that easement.

9



MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING HELD ON July 8, 2014, AT 5:01 P.M.

Mr. Moon stated that staff’s intention was initially to have a public right-of-way from the north end of the
property down to the south end. This applicant has committed to deed or dedicate a ten foot right-of-way
easement along the eastern boundary of their property. If the City notifies the Boughan Brothers that it intends
to convert that 40 foot easement into a public right-of-way. Then the City Engineer can contact them and
request they deed that 10 foot easement to the City to create a 50 foot right-of-way.

In response to questions by Mr. Dreiling, Mr. Moon stated the easement from staff’s interpretation of the
material provided addresses rights for the Raynor Shine property owner to travel upon that easement. He said
the owner to the south of that easement has not demonstrated the right to use that easement. Additionally, in
conversations with the Boughan Brothers, they did not object to this project as long as that 40 foot easement
remains a private roadway. They have security issues and if the easement stays private, they have more control
over who drives upon their property. As the area grows there will be more people and that will provide better
security for their business. He stated that currently the owners of the property to the south might be using the
easement to access their property. He did not know if they had legal access to Hermit Smith Road.

2. LDC, Section 2.02.16. G.2. - Areas adjacent to agricultural districts shall provide an eight-foot masonry
wall within a minimum of ten-foot landscaped bufferyard. Applicant is requesting a waiver to allow a
10-foot landscaped bufferyard with a 6-foot chain link fence. The justifications for the request is due to
the property to the west containing vegetation from a fern growing operating that blocks the view; and
the property to the north is a citrus grove with a dense 6-foot hedge.

3. LDC, Section 2.02.16. G.3. - Areas adjacent to residential districts shall provide an eight-foot masonry
wall within a minimum of 50-foot landscaped bufferyard. Applicant is requesting a waiver to allow a
30-foot buffer with a 6-foot chain link along the property line to the north because the adjacent land is
owned by the Applicant and is intended to be rezoning to I-1. Additionally, the Applicant is requesting a
waiver to allow a 20-foot buffer along the southern property line because the adjacent property is a
borrow pit that is not conducive to residential use.

Mr. Dreiling expressed his concerns with approving a variance regarding buffers along the southern property
line without knowing what that property owners’ intent is for that property. He said that it appears that only 25%
of the property to the south belongs to St. John River Water Management District. Additionally, it expressed
concern with regard to the proposed radial stackers with large piles and they are looking for a variance against
something that is residential abutting it.

In response to a question by Chairperson Hooks, Mr. Moon stated that the property to the south was re-
contoured and does not constitute a borrow pit because they only skim off the surface so that it remains
developable. With regard to the language in the staff report that states: “Additionally, the Applicant is
requesting a waiver to allow a 20-foot buffer along the southern property line because the adjacent property is a
borrow pit that is not conducive to residential use. Staff does not object to any of the waiver requests,” Mr.
Moon stated that it was his opinion is that the area is industrial. There is an airport that is likely going to be
expanded. It is right under the flight path. It’s unattractive for residential development.

In response to a question by Chairperson Hooks, Jimmy Dunn, June Engineering Consultants, Inc., 14 S. Main
Street, Winter Garden, stated that he presents the owner of the property to the south of Raynor Shine.

Staff does not object to any of the above waiver requests and will incorporate these waivers as development
13 Ixrds within the PUD zoning ordinance.

10



MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING HELD ON July 8, 2014, AT 5:01 P.M.

Mr. Dreiling stated that he does not have a problem with what is planned for the subject property or the zoning.
He was concerned with the variances being requested that are going with the zoning. Its right in the trucking
corridor, he said his question is a variance is requested for residential next to a property that could be industrial
but is currently zoned residential.

Mr. Moon said the buffer that would be required is 30 feet to accommodate their plan, they have asked for a 10
foot variance. Although the property owner to the south has a right to development the property as residential,
they also have the right to development the property as industrial or commercial. Based on the access issues to
this site as well as the industrial character of this property, his opinion is that the site is unattractive for
residential development in the future.

Mr. Dreiling continued to express his concerns about the variances because staff did not know what the intent of
the property owner to the south was planning for that property and not requiring a public right-of-way so that
Raynor Shine and the property to the south could have legal access.

The Development Review Committee finds the proposed amendment consistent with the Comprehensive Plan
and recommends approval of the change in zoning from “County” I-4 (ZIP) and “City” I-1 to “City” Planned
Unit Development (PUD/I-2); and finds the proposed Master Site Plan\Preliminary Development Plan to be
consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and Land Development Code, and recommends approval of the Master
Site Plan\preliminary Development Plan subject to the development standards and conditions recommended in
the staff report, for the property owned by Raynor Apopka Land Management, LLC.

Staff recommends that the Planning Commission address separate actions for the PUD\I-2 zoning and another
for the Master Site Plan\Preliminary Development Plan. This item is considered quasi-judicial.

John Herbert, American Civil Engineering Company, 207 North Moss Road, Suite 211, Winter Springs,
introduced Mike Dinkel, the partner of Tony Raynor, of Raynor Shine Recycling Solutions, LLC. He asked that
they would like to request flexibility in the phasing plan. He said that, if possible, they would like to be able to
develop as the market allows. The other item was that the buffer request to the south of their property is being
requested is because that property is approximately 30 feet below the Raynor Shine property with a slope. If
they put in a fence and some shrubs with the slope their property will not be seen. He said that they concur with
staff’s recommendations.

Chairperson Hooks opened the meeting for public hearing.

Mr. Dunn stated that he represents Eagles Landing and Ocoee, Inc. He stated that his client intends to fully
develop the site. They have other areas of excavation in Hillsborough County that they are developing and one
of their business models is to re-contour, leave the land usable, and then develop the property at a later date. He
said that in speaking with staff his client sees that area as an industrial area and would like to probably pursue
industrial zoning for the property. He stated that their biggest concern, which they had just become aware of,
was that in looking back at their title opinions they discovered a 30 foot right-of-way on the western boundary
of the property. He provided a copy to staff just prior to the start of the meeting so they have not had a chance
to review it. He said access to their property is a concern. They would like for that to be looked at and
addressed prior to moving forward to City Council.

In response to questions by Chairperson Hooks, Mr. Dunn stated that he believes that his client’s preference is
e the whole property to industrial zoning. The buffer waiver being requested should not be a problem.

14

11



MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING HELD ON July 8, 2014, AT 5:01 P.M.

Mr. Davoll stated the Raynor Shine applicant submitted documents from the Boughan Brothers on easements
and Mr. Dunn has dropped of a survey with a couple of documents that were recorded in the early 1970s that
staff has not had an opportunity to look at. Those documents indicate a 30 foot easement/right-of-way.

In response to a question by Chairperson Hooks, Mr. Davoll stated that a legal description without a map
attached to it will have to be traced and too difficult to do during the meeting. He said he will have to trace it
out according to the corners.

In response to questions by Mr. Moon, Mr. Dunn stated that this was discovered at 4:00 p.m. this afternoon and
looking back at title opinions and surveys done in 2010, the surveyor, who he got to speak with briefly,
reiterated his confidence that there is a 30 foot right-of-way on the eastern boundary of the property line. He
said that they want it looked into with the surveyor and the City on establishing a right-of-way from Hermit
Smith Road.

In response to a question by Chairperson Hooks, Mr. Dunn agreed that when they development their land they
either need an agreement with the Boughan Brothers to allow access to the property, assuming at that time it is
not public right-of-way, or they need the City to take property and development Hermit Smith Road to have
access to their property.

With no one else wishing to speak, Chairperson Hooks closed the public hearing.

In response to questions by Mr. Dreiling, Mr. Davoll clarified that the Boughan Brothers have agreed to allow
the applicant to use the 40 foot easement on their property for access and the applicant has agreed to dedicate 10
feet on their property to create a 50 foot public right-of-way to extend Hermit Smith Road. He said that the site
plan will not be taken to City Council until the access issues are resolved.

Mr. Moon stated that if it is determined that a 30 foot right-of-way occurs on the eastern edge of the southern
property then the plans would require substantial modification which would warrant it’s return back to the
Planning Commission.

Motion: Ben Dreiling made a motion to recommend approval of the Change of Zoning from
“County” I-4 (ZIP) and “City” C-1 to “City” Planned Unit Development (PUD/I-2); the
following waivers: [1] LDC, Section 2.02.16. G.1. - Areas adjacent to all road rights-of-way
shall provide eight (8) foot masonry wall within a minimum 25-foot landscaped bufferyard
to allow a 10-foot landscaped bufferyard due to the adjacent property being zoned I-1 and
for security purposes; [2] LDC, Section 2.02.16. G.2. - Areas adjacent to agricultural
districts shall provide an eight-foot masonry wall within a minimum of ten-foot landscaped
bufferyard to allow a 10-foot landscaped bufferyard with a 6-foot chain link fence; and [3]
LDC, Section 2.02.16. G.3. - Areas adjacent to residential districts shall provide an eight-
foot masonry wall within a minimum of 50-foot landscaped bufferyard to allow a 30-foot
buffer with a 6-foot chain link along the property line to the north and to allow a 20-foot
buffer along the southern property line because the adjacent property is a borrow pit that
is not conducive to residential use, for property owned by Raynor Apopka Land
Management, LLC; and subject to the information and findings in the staff report, and
James Greene seconded the motion. Aye votes were cast by Steve Hooks, Melvin Birdsong,
Ben Dreiling, James Greene, Teresa Roper, and Robert Ryan (6-0).

15

12



MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING HELD ON July 8, 2014, AT 5:01 P.M.

Motion: Ben Dreiling made a motion to recommend approval of the Raynor Shine Recycling
Solutions, LLC Master Site Plan/Preliminary Development Plan, for property owned by
Raynor Apopka Land Management, LLC, subject to [1] clarification of the 30 foot right-of-
way on the eastern portion of the property to the south being resolved prior to it going to
the City Council; [2] if the 30 foot right-of-way does exist, the Master Site Plan/Preliminary
Development Plan is to be brought back to the Planning Commission for review due to
possible inconsistencies with the Land Development Code; and [3] the information and
findings in the staff report. Melvin Birdsong seconded the motion.

In response to a question by Mr. Herbert, the Commission had no objections to the requested phase jumping.

Aye votes were cast by Steve Hooks, Melvin Birdsong, Ben Dreiling, James Greene, Teresa
Roper, and Robert Ryan (6-0).

FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN - LADYBIRD ACADEMY OF APOPKA - Jay Davoll, P.E., Community
Development Director/City Engineer, stated this is a request to recommend approval of the Final Development
Plan for the Ladybird Academy of Apopka. The owner is Marshall Howard. The engineering firm/applicant is
Fragomeni Engineering, Inc., c/o Sherry Fragomeni, P.E. The property is located at 1151 Rock Springs Road
(east of Rock Springs Road, south of Welch Road). The existing use is vacant land and the proposed use is a
child daycare center. The future land use is Commercial and the zoning is C-1. The tract size is 4.45 +/- acres.
The proposed building size is 13, 388 sq. ft. The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated into and
made a part of the minutes of this meeting.

The Ladybird Academy of Apopka Final Development Plan proposes a 13,388 square foot child daycare facility.

Stormwater run-off and drainage will be accommodated by on-site wet retention pond. The applicant is
requesting a waiver from LDC 6.05.00.B.7, which requires all retention ponds and detention ponds to be
designed as dry bottom ponds unless otherwise approved by city council.

A ten foot landscape buffer is provided along Rock Springs Road. The applicant has provided a detailed
landscape and irrigation plan for the property. The planting materials and irrigation system design are consistent
with the water-efficient landscape standards set forth in Ordinance No. 2069.

A total of 43 parking spaces are provided, of which two are handicapped parking space. Access to the subject
property occurs through an existing driveway cut that is currently in place for the site. Prior to issuance of a
certificate of occupancy for the building, the property owner must submit a recorded temporary driveway
easement regarding the current driveway and the access driveway to the northern parcel.

The design of the building exterior meets the intent of the City’s Development Design Guidelines.

The applicant is requesting a waiver from LDC 2.02.12(g)2, which requires a six (6) high masonry wall for
commercial zoned property adjacent to residential areas. The applicant is requesting to provide a landscaped
buffer in lieu of a masonry wall along the northern property line abutting the R-1AAA zoned property. Staff did
not object to this waiver request.

The applicant is requesting a waiver from dumpster enclosure design standards that require a brick or stone wall
finish. The applicant is proposing a stucco finish on the enclosure walls to match exterior of building. Staff did

jject to this waiver request.
16

13



MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING HELD ON July 8, 2014, AT 5:01 P.M.

The applicant is requesting a waiver from LDC 6.05.00.B.7, which requires all retention ponds and detention
ponds to be designed as dry bottom ponds unless otherwise approved by city council. Staff did not object to this
waiver request.

The applicant is requesting a waiver from section 4.2.3 of the Development Design Guidelines standards, which
requires thirty (30) percent of the primary facade to be comprised of windows and doors. The thirty (30) percent
requirement is not practical for this type of use. Staff did not object to this waiver request.

The Development Review Committee recommends approval of the Ladybird Academy of Apopka - Final
Development Plan and waiver requests, subject to the findings of this staff report.

This item is considered quasi-judicial. The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated into and made a
part of the minutes of this meeting.

In response to a question by Mr. Greene, Mr. Moon stated that the staff recommendation for the dumpster
enclosure was a scrivener’s error. It should read that staff does not object to the waiver request.

Chairperson Hooks opened the meeting for public hearing. With no one wishing to speak, Chairperson Hooks
closed the public hearing.

Motion: Ben Dreiling made a motion to recommend approval of the Ladybird Academy of Apopka
Final Development Plan; the following waiver requests: [1] LDC 2.02.12(g)2, which
requires a six (6) high masonry wall for commercial zoned property adjacent to residential
areas to allow a landscaped buffer in lieu of a masonry wall along the northern property
line abutting the R-1AAA zoned property; [2] LDC 6.05.00.B.7, which requires all
retention ponds and detention ponds to be designed as dry bottom ponds unless otherwise
approved by city council; [3] waiver from section 4.2.3 of the Development Design
Guidelines standards, which requires thirty (30) percent of the primary facade to be
comprised of windows and doors; [4] waiver of the dumpster enclosure design standards
that require a brick or stone wall finish to allow a stucco finish on the enclosure walls to
match exterior of building; and [5] subject to the information and findings in the staff
report. Teresa Roper seconded the motion. Aye votes were cast by Steve Hooks, Melvin
Birdsong, Ben Dreiling, James Greene, Teresa Roper, and Robert Ryan (6-0).

FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN - VERIZON WIRELESS - APOPKA — Mr. Davoll stated this is a request
to recommend approval of the Final Development Plan for Verizon Wireless — Apopka. The owner is Calmil
Investment Group, LP and the applicant is Rock RDP 1, LLC. The engineering firm is Rogers Engineering,
LLC, c/o Bill Menadier, P.E. The property is located at 1120 West Orange Blossom Trail (east of Lake Doe
Boulevard, south of West Orange Blossom Trail). The existing use is vacant land and the proposed use is a
Verizon Wireless Retail Store. The future land use is Commercial and the zoning is C-2. The tract size is 0.83
+/- acre. The proposed building size is 2,380 sq. ft. The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated into
and made a part of the minutes of this meeting.

The Verizon Wireless - Apopka Final Development Plan proposes a 2,380 square foot retail store.

Stormwater run-off and drainage will be accommodated by on-site retention. The on-site stormwater
management system is designed according to standards set forth in the Land Development Code

A ten foot landscape buffer is provided along Orange Blossom Trail and Lake Doe Boulevard. The applicant has
provided a detailed landscape and irrigation plan for the property. The planting materials and irrigation system
1 are consistent with the water-efficient landscape standards set forth in Ordinance No. 2069.

17

14



MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING HELD ON July 8, 2014, AT 5:01 P.M.

A total of 17 parking spaces are provided, of which one is reserved as a handicapped parking space. Access to
the site is provided by a driveway cut along Lake Doe Boulevard and a cross-access easement agreement for
future access connection to West Orange Blossom Trail.

Design of the building exterior meets the intent of the City’s Development Design Guidelines.

The applicant is requesting a waiver from LDC 6.05.00.D.6.A which requires ten feet wide maintenance berm
around the pond perimeter. The applicant is proposing a five feet wide maintenance berm. Staff does not object
to this waiver request.

The Development Review Committee recommends approval of the Verizon Wireless — Apopka Final
Development Plan and waiver request, subject to the findings of this staff report.

This item is considered quasi-judicial. The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated into and made a
part of the minutes of this meeting.

Chairperson Hooks opened the meeting for public hearing. With no one wishing to speak, Chairperson Hooks
closed the public hearing.

Motion: James Greene made a motion to recommend approval of the Verizon Wireless — Apopka
Final Development Plan; the waiver request from LDC 6.05.00.D.6.A which requires a ten
foot wide maintenance berm around the pond perimeter to allow for a five foot wide
maintenance berm around the pond perimeter, for property owned by Calmil Investment
Group, LP, located at 1120 West Orange Blossom Trail, and subject to the findings in the
staff report. Ben Dreiling seconded the motion. Aye votes were cast by Steve Hooks,
Melvin Birdsong, Ben Dreiling, James Greene, Teresa Roper, and Robert Ryan (6-0).

OLD BUSINESS:

Planning Commission: None.
Public:  None.

NEW BUSINESS:

Planning Commission: None.
Public: None.

ADJOURNMENT: The meeting was adjourned at 7:12 p.m.

Steve Hooks, Chairperson

R. Jay Davoll, P.E.
Community Development Director

18 |ed\4020\ADM INISTRATION\PLANNING COMMISSION\Minutes\2014\07-08-14
15



19

Page 19

Backup material for agenda item:

1.

VARIANCE - Loaves & Fishes, Inc., 206 E. 8th Street — A variance of the
Apopka Code of Ordinances, Part lll, Land Development Code, Article I,

Sections 2.02.02.a. and 2.02.15.F. to allow for a reduction in the front and side
yard setbacks.



T CTLop

CITY OF APOPKA
PLANNING COMMISSION

CONSENT AGENDA MEETING OF:. August 12, 2014
X PUBLIC HEARING FROM: Community Development
SPECIAL REPORTS EXHIBITS: Vicinity Map
OTHER: Aerial Map
Applicant’s Response to Criteria
Site/Landscape Plans
Building Elevations
SUBJECT: LOAVES AND FISHES, INC. VARIANCE REQUEST
Request: A VARIANCE OF THE APOPKA CODE OF ORDINANCES, PART IlI,
LAND DEVELOPMENT CODE, ARTICLE Il, SECTIONS 2.02.02.a. AND
2.02.15.F. TO ALLOW FOR A REDUCTION IN THE FRONT AND SIDE
YARD SETBACKS
SUMMARY':
OWNER: Loaves and Fishes, Inc.
c/o Karen Valiente, Senior Director
ENGINEER: Unroe Engineering, Inc. c/o Darcy Unroe
LOCATION: 206 East 8" Street at the corner of Robinson Ave.
LAND USE: Industrial
ZONING: I-1
EXISTING USE: Public Use - Food Pantry

PROPOSED USE:

VARIANCE REQUEST:

TRACT SIZE:

Public Use - Food Pantry

The applicant requests a variance to allow proposed building addition to
encroach up to five (5) feet into the required twenty-five (25) feet front
and corner yard setbacks.

0.48 +/- acre

DISTRIBUTION
Mayor Kilsheimer
Commissioners (4)
CA Richard Anderson
Community Dev. Dir.

Finance Dir. Public Ser. Dir (2)
HR Director City Clerk

IT Director Fire Chief

Police Chief

20 |hared\4020\PIanning_Zoning\Subdivision Plans\Loaves and Fishes, Inc. - Variance PC 07-12-14



PLANNING COMMISSION — AUGUST 12, 2014
LOAVES AND FISHES, INC. - VARIANCE
PAGE 2

VARIANCE REQUEST: Applicant requests up to a five (5) foot reduction in the required twenty-five
(25) feet front and corner yard setbacks, creating a twenty (20) feet setback. The applicant is proposing
to construct an additional 720 square feet of storage space on to the existing food pantry. As appearing
in the Redevelopment Plan, the proposed 20°x 36’ storage room Will encroach 2.6 feet into the required
twenty-five (25) foot front yard setback along East 8" Street and 4.9 feet into the twenty-five (25) foot
corner yard setback along Robinson Avenue. If approved and constructed per the Redevelopment Plan,
the variance will leave a 21.4 foot building setback along East 8" Street and a 20.1 foot building setback
along Robinson Avenue.

APPLICABLE CITY CODE: City of Apopka, Code of Ordinances, Part Il - Land Development
Code, Article 11, Section 2.0.01.A., Minimum front setback of 25 feet and corner lot setback of 25 feet,
and Section 2.02.15.F.: All yards adjacent to road right-of-ways shall be a minimum of 25 feet.

APPLICANT’S RESPONSE TO SEVEN VARIANCE CRITERIA:

When evaluating a variance application, the Planning Commission shall not vary from the requirements
of the code unless it makes a positive finding, based on substantial competent evidence on each of the
following:

1. There are practical difficulties in carrying out the strict letter of the regulation [in] that the
requested variance relates to a hardship due to characteristics of the land and not solely on the
needs of the owner.

Applicant Response: The lot is triangular in shape with an existing warehouse building that
encroaches into the front setback. The strict implementation of the setback would result in an
oddly shaped front facade and would restrict the ability of the non-profit from serving the needs
of the community.

Staff Response: DRC finds that a valid hardship occurs and does not object to the Applicant’s
Response. The south property line abuts CSX/FCEN railroad right-of-way, preventing an ability
to acquire additional contiguous land to the south. Further, the West Orange Trail abuts the
western boundary of the subject property and public streets to the north and east, preventing an
ability to acquire additional contiguous land to the west. The existing building already
encroaches into the front setback along East 8" Street by 3.6 feet, and the bU|Id|ng addition will
not extend beyond the front of the existing building wall that faces East 8" Street by more than
that which already occurs for the existing building. Encroachment of the front or corner
setback, as proposed, does not create an unacceptable line-of-sight at the corner of East 8" Street
and Robinson Avenue.

2. The variance request is not based exclusively upon a desire to reduce the cost of developing the
site.

Applicant’s Response: No reduction in cost is anticipated with the granting of this variance.
Staff Response: A hardship is created by the odd triangular shape of the lot, inability to expand

land area to the south because of the CSX/FCEN railroad right-of-way. DRC does not object to
the Applicant’s Response.

21




PLANNING COMMISSION — AUGUST 12, 2014
LOAVES AND FISHES, INC. - VARIANCE

PAGE 3

22

3.

The proposed variance will not substantially increase congestion on surrounding public streets.

Applicant’s Response: The proposed construction will only minimally increase the traffic on
adjacent streets. The granting of the variance will have no effect on the amount of additional
traffic generated.

Staff Response: DRC does not object to the Applicant’s Response.

The proposed variance will not substantially diminish property values in, nor alter the essential
character of, the area surrounding the site.

Applicant’s Response: The front facade of the proposed addition will match the facade of the
existing building on-site. The proposed variance will match the existing conditions of the site.

Staff Response: DRC does not object to the Applicant’s Response. Expansion of the existing
building and the proposed variance will not interfere with the ability of abutting property owners
to use their property.

The effect of the proposed variance is in harmony with the general intent of this code and the
specific intent of the relevant subject area(s) of the code.

Applicant’s Response: The proposed development will save a stand of oak trees along the
southern side of the property, which will accomplish the desired effect while allowing for a
compact development of the property.

Staff Response: The subject property is assigned an I-1 Industrial zoning category. Properties
to the east, west, and south are assigned the I-1 zoning category and the properties to the north A
C-1 Commercial category. DRC does not object to the Applicant’s Response.

Special conditions and circumstances do not result from the actions of the applicant.

Applicant’s Response: The existing building was constructed before the current owner
purchased the property.

Staff Response: DRC finds that a valid hardship occurs and does not object to the Applicant’s
Response. The south property line abuts CSX/FCEN railroad right-of-way, preventing an ability
to acquire additional land to the south. The existing building already encroaches into the front
setback along East 8th Street. Expansion of the existing building does not encroach into the front
setback along East 8th Street by more than that which already occurs for the existing building.

That the variance granted is the minimum variance which will make possible the reasonable use
of the land, building or structure. The proposed variance will not create safety hazards and other
detriments to the public.

Applicant’s Response: The developer is requesting to match the existing front fagade.

Staff Response: The front building wall will not encroach into the front setback by more that
which is already encroached by the existing building — 3.6 feet. Along Robinson Avenue, the
building wall will encroach into the corner setback by 4.9 feet. DRC does not object to the
Applicant’s Response for the front building encroachment. The existing building wall facing
Robinson Avenue currently complies with the corner lot setback of 25 feet. A proposed
building addition creates the variance situation.



PLANNING COMMISSION — AUGUST 12, 2014
LOAVES AND FISHES, INC. - VARIANCE
PAGE 4

PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE:
August 12, 2014 - Planning Commission (5:01 p.m.)

RECOMMENDED ACTION:

The Development Review Committee finds that a valid hardship exists and does not object to the
variance request to allow the proposed building addition to encroach 3.6 feet into the twenty five (25)
foot front setback and bufferyard, and 4.9 feet into the twenty five foot front setback and bufferyard.

Planning Commission Recommendation: Authorize the approval of a variance to Sections 2.02.02.a.
and 2.02.15.F., of the Land Development Code, to allow a 3.6 foot encroachment into the twenty five
foot front yard setback and a 4.9 foot encroachment into the twenty five foot corner yard setback, subject
to DRC approval of the Redevelopment Plan.

As per the Land Development Code, Article XI - 11.05.00.A. - The Planning Commission has been
established as a citizen board to review and approve variances.

Note: This item is considered quasi-judicial. The staff report and its findings are to be
incorporated into and made a part of the minutes of this meeting.

23




PLANNING COMMISSION — AUGUST 12, 2014

LOAVES AND FISHES, INC. - VARIANCE

PAGE 5

7

25

33

24

West
Orange Trail
City Of
Apopka

LOAVES AND FISHES, INC.

Applicant: Karen Valiente, Senior Director

Engineer: Unroe Engineering, Inc. c/o Darcy Unroe
206 East 8" Street

0.48 +/- Acre

Parcel ID #: 15-21-28-7540-00-211

VICINITY MAP

165

Duke Energy
 Florida Inc
n

e
—

2661

Warehouse
Apopka
Industrial
Park LLC

22

149.83

ROBINSON AVE

o o
P
P2
&
3 4
City Of
Apopka
3
= =
50 50
7 219
e
150

Loaves and
FishesInc

8 20 &°
150
183
19
/19_‘:-
23
7
i Y
o S

LOAVES AND FISHES, INC.
Applicant: Karen Valiente, Senior Director

150

TUU

38
38
i 100

ESTHST

150

a0

130



PLANNING COMMISSION — AUGUST 12, 2014
LOAVES AND FISHES, INC. - VARIANCE
PAGE 6

Engineer: Unroe Engineering, Inc. c/o Darcy Unroe
206 East 8" Street
0.48 +/- Acre
Parcel ID #: 15-21-28-7540-00-211

AERIAL MAP

25




Page 1 of 3

Rogers Beckett - FW: Loaves and Fishes -Variance Request

From: Karen Valiente <valientelf@hotmail.com>

To: "rbeckett@apopka.net" <rbeckett@apopka.net>
Date: 7/29/2014 10:31 AM

Subject: FW: Loaves and Fishes -Variance Request

Hello Rogers,
Per your request, our Civil Engineer has addressed all your questions. Hope this information is helpful.
Thanks for all your support of Loaves & Fishes!

Together invHiy Service,
K oawen Valiente
Senior Dirvector
Loowves & Fishes

(407) 886-6005

From: darcy@UnroeEngineering.com

To: valientelf@hotmail.com

Subject: RE: Loaves and Fishes -Variance Request
Date: Tue, 29 Jul 2014 10:09:01 -0400

There are practical difficulties in carrying out the strict letter of the regulation [in] that the requested
variance relates to a hardship due to characteristics of the land and not solely on the needs of the
owner.

The lot is triangular in shape with an existing warehouse building that encroaches into the front
setback. The strict implementation of the setback would result in an oddly shaped front facade and
would restrict the ability of the non-profit from serving the needs of the community

The variance request is not based exclusively upon a desire to reduce the cost of developing the site.
No reduction in cost is anticipated with the granting of this variance.

The proposed variance will not substantially increase congestion on surrounding public streets.
The proposed construction will only minimally increase the traffic on adjacent streets. The granting of
the variance will have no effect on the amount of additional traffic generated.

The proposed variance will not substantially diminish property values in, nor alter the essential
character of, the area surrounding the site.

The front facade of the proposed addition will match the facade of the existing building on-site. The
proposed variance will match the existing conditions of the site.

file://C:\Documents and Settings\RBeckett.CD-007.000\Local Settings\Temp\XPgrpwise\53... 8/4/2014



- Page 2 of 3

The effect of the proposed variance is in harmony with the general intent of this code and the specific
intent of the relevant subject area(s) of the code.

The setback requirements are intended to allow for sufficient open space. The proposed development
will save a stand of oak trees along the southern side of the property, which will accomplish the desired
effect while allowing for a compact development of the property.

Special conditions and circumstances do not result from the actions of the applicant.
The existing building was constructed before the current owner purchased the property.

That the variance granted is the minimum variance which will make possible the reasonable use of the
land, building or structure. The proposed variance will not create safety hazards and other detriments
to the public.

The developer is requesting to match the existing front facade.

Darcy Unroe PE

Unroe Engineering, Inc
PO Box 690942

Orlando, Florida 32869

Ph (407) 299 0650

Fx(407) 429-7639
www.UnroeEngineering.com

From: Karen Valiente [mailto:valientelf@hotmail.com]
Sent: Tuesday, July 29, 2014 9:29 AM

To: darcy@unroeengineering.com

Subject: FW: Loaves and Fishes -Variance Request

Hi Darcy,
Can you answer these questions for Rogers Beckett from the City of Apopka, so that he can finish his
report???

Together inHiy Service;
K owenw Valiente
Senior Divector

Loowves & Fishes
(407) 886-6005

Date: Tue, 29 Jul 2014 08:40:42 -0400

From: RBeckett@Apopka.net

To: valientelf@hotmail.com

CC: darcy@unroeengineering.com

Subject: Loaves and Fishes -Variance Request
Mrs. Valiente,

file://C:\Documents and Settings\RBeckett.CD-007.000\Local Settings\Temp\XPgrpwise\53... 8/4/2014




£~ Page 3 of 3

- - o

Could you please answer the questions on the attached document concerning your variance request
and return as soon as possible. If you have any questions give me a call. Thanks

Rogers Beckett

Special Projects Coordinator
City of Apopka

120 East Main Street
Apopka, Fl 32704-1229
P.0.Box 1229
Ph:407-703-1739
Fax:407-703-1791
rbeckett@apopka.net

file://C:\Documents and Settings\RBeckett.CD-007.000\Local Settings\Temp\XPgrpwise\533... 8/4/2014



Redevelopment Plan for Loaves & Fishes Expansior

Main Straat

Schedule of Drawings
ct - Redevelopment Plan L \
€2 -  Site Layout Plan N
c: - Site Grading Plan
c4 Specifications & Sections v
L1 Landscape Plan ti FPlan
- =
AD1 - Buliding Elevations
- Survey Plan
Zoflo Urbar
~Ex. Mydront
Candler \Jrban ¥
ﬁnmu,mwmmmm:mawnmwnm
Sols RAILAGAD RGHT~CF~WAY BETOEEN LOTS 21 AND 24, A% 0 THE PLAT THEREOF A8
oy N PLA BOOK 8, PAGE 40 OF THE SUBUC RECORDS OF ORANGE COUNTY, FLOMIOA

v ~£AST @14 _STREET -

Cwnar: Engineer:

L-wclen Darey; Unros PE

208 £ Bth Street Uaroe Erginesring, ine
Apapie, Fleride 8728 &aﬁ Su'te 758
e Keran Vallente Qrionds, ide 32819

Fe i) dza-ram

LOT 20, ROBINSON AND DERSM'S ADOIMION TO

COROED N PLAT K B PAGE 40 OF ™E

3/3 OF THE WEST 1/2 OF LOT 20, ROBINSON AND DEREM'S 00 TION 10 APOPKA,

mmnnmwuw%ammmmm 15-TP. 218-RG.I0L.,
L OF THE PUIRC RECORDS OF

AS PR PLAT THEREOF RECORDED N K B FAGE 40,
COUNTY, "LOADA.
-
FALF OF THE NORTH 2/3 OF THE WEST WAL®

13
3
2
3
2

Site Data Table

Pacoal Iha: Pacoel 192128 7840.00.211

Pacoel 2 1927 20 1840.00.201
Fiturs Land Use Induwirial
Zoning Claseifisetion 1
Aeragesquare footage

Paronl 1

0.40 Aaji0,354 l:

L " . »
WLl ing Meight Proposed 20 /Max. %
Floor Arss Natie Proposed . 14 Ih. M 90 0N

Sudeii) 2.4 1i©.0
Cornar() 2.1 2.0
Ruar(8) 0.9 10.0°
mmwlw/ 1,000 of = 12 sprcen
-
ng 17 wpaces
WGP Meguiren (28.50 range) * 3 paves
m - 20 wpasee

Loading’ mloading Spaces < 3 prom
Pacoel 1 - 1523:28-7540-00-211

B ot
Packing wd Aocess 0,148 ot 2,378 ot
M

O
" Parsent ingervious [ -
Variance /Waiver Table Parcent Open Spase “e 5.0
Pacond B« 152128 754000201
Coded Code Requirement V) Request Justification 2 i,
Packing sd Ascens o 5,400 of
2.02.01{8) Front Setbcck = 38° v Fronl Sethack = 21.4° Wotches exiating front focade of exiating buiding £
Bervious L 408 ¥
Y . v A Metches Tron! focods of exinting Pursent lagerviouws o.0N s
20201(n) Corner Selbock = 28 -C:'wv Selboce = 20 axinting g bubiding S B i
Design| C sheel matel w Alow sheet metol asterfor Voiches exlating buliding mo'erials
Gula Gection | not alowed an axterior
5.2 Industricl motadols on princie
Bubdirg Comign Ve ure

Dencr iglion

i

"

City Cornments
Cay Comments
Oeacriglion

2 fa/a/14
i | 772/04
Dot

AOPKA,
OF THE Nw 1/4 SECTION 18- 218-RG.28E,
PUBLIC RECONDS OF

Evatiaation

o L

@ Unroe Engineering, Inc
PO Rox 8000845 m“' Fl 228668-0042>
Busoss Avthoszafon Shemer - BB 00000578 Ph (40T) 209-0050

I,,

Redevelopment Plan for
Loaves & Fishes Expansion
2006 E 0Th Sweet, Apopka, Florida 32700

)

1"=g0' feale
Date
Larco Fila
Owe. No.
1 of L ]




4 N
C
.©
=t
3
0
(M)
a
S
O
a
=
— — _ _ _ _ _ . | 35— . 35° | Revisions
v\ - 7 - - - - \\u - -
\ , 8/ \ ol
- AN pd Landscape lLegend ol 8|5
N\ 35’| VO v ERN (VO - 5| 5| €
" 70\ 350 of 590 of Ex 127 . = L\ \J4/ Number Symbol Description ol ol g
T B \\ / N—— ) . - . . Qv — Live Oak (Quercus virginiana) el
— - . 7 : = t - // éseee\“e)eaeeGﬁ?;“’{,, / 12 Trees 3.0” Cal, 10" High
m %}(\/\/\/\ PR ¥ & v v v SOy v N __\‘/ O ‘(‘ p) N N v \ W\V//////l v v v < <
ré re 7 e e } : v v v v ¥ Nz v "\ <4 e v v N 1 8
//)//)//;/msz v v N /@’w N WSQI N0 w\ ) v % m R R S
< o ﬂ - g
O 28 27 " VO AT o) v v | v 180 sf vl v o N NES
\ ) S — NEY, // 4 / . \ 180 sf Lantana o Ly _ U — Crepe Myrtle (Langerstromia indicia)
| | AN v Lantana IR 2 Trees 2.0" Cal, Multi—stem, 8' High | = | =
L , (LN / v A Y Yo Revisions /
Ex 8 2/ OV v v i “1 \ LJ — Ligustrum Tree (Ligustrum japonicum) 4 )
Oak tree / Vo v 250 sf M G e 2 Trees ~ 2.0” Cal, Multi—stem, 8" High
O )|V )Y v Lantana i o
1 Addition #1 ’ 4@}\, ﬂ O § § 0
i -
Ex Food Pantry 20'x36’ |~ v — ‘f'//’ 180 sf Y VO — Viburnum Hedge (Viburnum suspensum) - T O O
/ - 2 . 2 —
s L. %Ef/,» Lantana . 122 Shrubs R 26" High @ 36” 0.C., 5 Gal 5 0 o
o S . ,{‘// Ex 44" - J 0 g
2 ‘n//’ " Oak tree o > 0 ~
/_Ad,diti’on 43 o _Z;:Z/J — c Y ob
12'x7 | 7N 9400 <f b v v — Bahia Sod = @ % N
W ) (' N
O » : : : : ; — c
\ New Gate Ex|36 GJ L L 2
Oak |tree ‘ /O ()] 0
Renmove 7 0 :
\ w 1,180 sf /////// — Ground cover, Weeping Lantana C ()} _8 o
R 6” high, 8" Spread, 30” O.C. e ) S
| Addition#2 : 2,4/ ) 180 sf Q) ¢ § S
<\ 25520 "?'4'/4 Lantana (0, 00)00,00,00)00,00,7¢ C £ % S
X ’é’?@/ 870 sf ////////////////////////,///,/ — Ground cover, Dwarf Indian Hawthorn II I % 0 =
\K VO "/‘/'é (NN ININININIS 7” high, 6” spread, 24” OC o
Ex 30" ) H d , ' O\
Oak tree : 0 vovov QW 5’ Landscape Buffer GJ O ¢
. FEEEEEEEE New o g N with 4 Trees & Existing O £ 0 2
ol | Dumpster / l 6’ high Opaque Fence — o © S
L e B Enclosure §— | b W === — = — C o 0 2
Ex 43 e B _ c O =N
\ Ook tree L\ R T T T ' '6) >< E
EX 24” E 12" 0 ............................................................................... 5 UCJ O ;
_ OOk tree X P 72 ) NS
Oak tree .-= — i ﬁ
\K - . T N 2 2 O %
s T AL 5L
\Q Oak treem. \_ %
"l - | / ™\
\ | \Ex 48"
Oak tree Oak tree
\ Ex 327 (QV c oo
Oak tree U/ L O 0
5’ Landscape Buffer O B N
with 6 Trees & new Landscape Notes 0 N
6’ high Opaque Fence 1. All plant material shall be of Florida No. 1 Grade or better. Y Y
2. Al plant material shall be guaranteed for 90 days. C @
5. All sodded areas marked on plans shall be rolled to insure an even look. C (U T
4. The landscape contractor shall be responsible for finished grades and any O. ©
- shaping or pruning of material specified on plans. (U 0
N 5. Landscape contractor shall notify the owner or owner’s representative of >< E
M any discrepancies of field conditions immediately. — Lu
S 6. All plant material shall survive climatic conditions of the area. & CU
g —~Any existimgvirees~ghown~o~ermqin are to be protected. y
n S q 8. Trees will be measured at D.B.H. (/) Q
prea O 0o
C 0
e Plant so that top of root . Q m <
ball is even with finished Tree Calculations -
Posts — 2"x2” wood grade. Total Tree Inches on Site 366.0 Inches m LL 0
3’ high - Total Tree Inches to be removed 0.0 Inches 0
Barrier ?,.Xté)., 6woc(>)<-jC-or * Paint all cuts over 17 dia. o Total Tree Inches replaced 0.0 Inches O w b
- ()
i . . . T
2 rows of ribbon. * Flag guym% wires with _ Replacement Trees 44.0 Inches U) (0 0
surveyors tape. o C
PINES ) . .
PINES 2 Maximum Tree Stock Calculations -O Q) -
HARDWOODS © a. --- 0
7 - c > °
7 E C. - CU (U
- . Quantity of Speci T d 0 Inches (0 tree) O 8
— g - uantity of Specimen Trees remove nches ree
) e B Rubber hose 1~ dia. | J a
I | Site Clearing Area = 42,777 st (0.98 Ac)
. . Guying wires 2 strand twist \ J
Ribbon Barrier Wood Barrier 12 gauge wire /
=— Full Drip Line — =— Full Drip Line — FORM DP Drawn
g9 » SAUCER
Form saucer with \ g ' S5 — 2°X4°X24" press ’7 DP Checked
Note: Protective tree barricades must be properly 3” continuous rim treated stakes. Top of - U : .
erected and inspected by the appropriate stakes 6” above ground = — |\ 8 " _on’ Scale
Department prior to the issuance of the permit. ) ) ) | RO p— | certify that the Landscape and Irrigation design for this project is in 17=20
Clean backfill Clean backfill Mix water = ) T accordance with the City of Apopka’s Ordinance 2069 adopted May 21, 2008
Mix water and tamp and tamp to remove air —_— /A e M ey which establishes waterwise landscape and irrigation standards. 5/9/14 Date
TREE PROTECTION to remove air pockets. /%/
pockets . .
EEEEEEEEEEEEEN = L&FLL File
]Ic?emO\fte Oqgo;ichurlcipb | UEMEMEMEMEM: Dwg. No.
r;?nrr;veopmon/—moodgoo d _;m:m:m:|||:|| Remove Organic Burlap | |
burlap material entirely === ];;?an;VteOpmlgzmogd;OOt ball |
burlap material entirely
Shrub Planting Detail , ,
Tree Planting Detall
5 of 8




New Main Addition

. ‘ 25' x 20" Addition
| | 7'x 12" Addition | | /"1 \Rear Elevation

New doors

New Addition = Existing Structure

BROWN + Company
Architecture, Inc.

2420 S. Lakemont Ave.

Suite 450
Orlando, FL 32814

Loaves & Fishes

206 E. 8th Street
Apopka, FL 32703

36!_0" ‘
I

/2 \8th Street Elevaion

U1/4" =1'-0"

o Main new warehouse
New Rear Existing Structure | / |

Addition

‘_ Main new warehouse

PROJECT NO.

245170

PROJECT
Project Name

DI
HLLLLL

DRAWN BY

6/23/2014
ldb

ISSUE

L
uMmuMMm
. ~New Door

| | | New Rear

miﬁlzilrjon Elevation Addition New Rear
7 Addition

WAREHOUSE
ADDITION

/4 \Right Side Elevation

S -vo

>
-
-




Page 32

Backup material for agenda item:

32

1.

FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN — Taco Bell — Owned by BB Hobbs Company —
Cobblestone Partners, Inc.; engineer is Florida Engineering Group, c/o Sam
Sebaali, P.E., LEED® AP; and property located at 1429 West Orange Blossom
Trail. (Parcel ID No. 05-21-28-0000-00-001)



CITY OF APOPKA
PLANNING COMMISSION

_X PUBLIC HEARING

MEETING OF: August 12, 2014

___ ANNEXATION FROM: Community Development

__ PLAT APPROVAL EXHIBITS: Vicinity Map

____ OTHER: Site/Landscape Plans
Building Elevations
Dumpster Enclosure

PROJECT: TACO BELL RESTAURANT - 1429 W. ORANGE BLOSSOM TRAIL

REQUEST: RECOMMEND APPROVAL OF THE TACO BELL FINAL DEVELOPMENT

PLAN- 1429 W. ORANGE BLOSSOM TRAIL (MINOR DEVELOPMENT PLAN)

SUMMARY::
OWNER:
APPLICANT/ENGINEER:

LOCATION:

PARCEL ID #:
LAND USE:
ZONING:
EXISTING USE:
PROPOSED USE:
TRACT SIZE:

BUILDING SIZE:

Cobblestone Partners, LLC
Florida Engineering Group Inc., c/o Samir J. Sebali, P.E.

1429 West Orange Blossom Trail
(North of U.S. Hwy 441, South of Old Dixie Hwy, and East of Errol Parkway)

05-21-28-0000-00-001
Commercial

C-2

Commercial Building
Drive-Thru Restaurant

1.00 +/- acre (43,657 sq. ft.)

DISTRIBUTION
Mayor Kilsheimer
Commissioners (4)
CA Richard Anderson
Community Dev. Dir.

33

2,263 sq. ft.
Finance Dir. Public Ser. Dir (2)
HR Director City Clerk
IT Director Fire Chief
Police Chief

d\4020\Planning_Zoning\Site Plans\Taco Bell\1 Taco Bell — 1429 W. OBT FDP PC 08-12-14



PLANNING COMMISSION - AUGUST 12, 2014
TACO BELL - 1429 WEST ORANGE BLOSSOM TRAIL - FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN
PAGE 2

RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES:

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use
North (City) |Residential Low PUD Single Family Residential
East (City) Commercial C-1/C-2 Day Care Center
South (City) | Commercial C-2 Shopping Center/Bank
West (City) Commercial C-1 Vacant Land

ADDITIONAL COMMENTS:

The TACO BELL Final Development Plan (1429 West Orange Blossom Trail) proposes a 2,263 square foot
restaurant with a drive-thru facility. A preliminary development plan is not required for projects less than
10,000 square feet. Access to the site will occur from a driveway connecting directly with Old Dixie Highway
and from cross access easement connecting to West Orange Blossom Trail through a driveway shared with a
RaceTrac convenience store/gas station.

UTILITY/STORMWATER: The site will be served by City water and sewer. The stormwater run-off and
drainage will be accommodated by an underground infiltration storage chamber. The on-site stormwater
management system is designed according to standards set forth in the Land Development Code

BUFFER/TREE PROGRAM: The site has a standard five (5) foot wide side-yard landscape buffer with a ten
(10) foot wide landscape buffer along Orange Blossom Trail and Old Dixie Highway. The applicant has
provided a detailed landscape and irrigation plan for the property. The planting materials and irrigation system
design are consistent with the water-efficient landscape standards set forth in Ordinance No. 2069. There is no
tree bank mitigation fee payment required for this site.

Total inches on-site: 164
Total inches removed: 164
Total inches replaced: 153
Tree stock formula calculation: 152.5
Tree inches deficient: 0

PARKING AND ACCESS: A total of 30 parking spaces are provided, of which two are handicapped parking
space. There are two ingress/egress points to the site; the primary entrance is from West Orange Blossom Trail
a.ka. (U.S. HWY 441) through cross access easement and shared driveway with RaceTrac and from a
secondary entrance located along Old Dixie Hwy.

EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS: Design of the building exterior meets the intent of the City’s Development
Design Guidelines.

SIGNAGE: The monument sign complies with sign code and is located in the front yard buffer abutting

Orange Blossom Trail. Landscape plan shows that the landscaping is designed to create a view corridor for

visibility from Orange Blossom Trail. Based on the sign code, a secondary monument side is allowed if a

business accesses two roadways. A secondary monument sign is not proposed within the site plan. Any future

addition of a secondary monument sign will require approval through a sign permit. One menu board sign is

permitted per drive-thru lane or drive-in station. No other commercial or promotional signs, including snipe-
igns, shall be located along the drive-thru lanes. The proposed wall signs and menu board are consistent
|he City’s sign code and must receive sign permits from the City prior to installation.




PLANNING COMMISSION - AUGUST 12, 2014
TACO BELL - 1429 WEST ORANGE BLOSSOM TRAIL - FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN
PAGE 3

WAIVER REQUEST: The applicant is requesting a waiver from section 6.06.00(c)5 of the Land Development
Code and the city approved Dumpster Enclosure Detail - Figure (601), which requires the use of brick or stone
cap block on the exterior walls of dumpster enclosure.

Response:  The applicant is proposing to use building materials compatible with the exterior of the
building. The dumpster enclosure materials will consist of a decorative stone base with
stucco walls. Details of the dumpster and building elevation are provided with the
supporting information containing in the agenda package.

e Staff does not object to this waiver request.
PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE:

August 12, 2014 - Planning Commission (5:01 pm)
August 20, 2014 - City Council (8:00 pm)

RECOMMENDED ACTION:

The Development Review Committee recommends approval of the TACO BELL RESTAURANT - 1429
West Orange Blossom Trail Final Development Plan and does not object to the waiver request, subject to the
findings of this staff report.

Note: This item is considered quasi-judicial. The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated into
and made a part of the minutes of this meeting.

35




PLANNING COMMISSION - AUGUST 12, 2014
TACO BELL - 1429 WEST ORANGE BLOSSOM TRAIL - FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN

PAGE 4

Application:

Owner:
Engineer:

Parcel 1.D. No:

Location:

Total Acres:

36

Final Development Plan

BB Hobbs Company — Cobblestone Partners, LLC

Florida Engineering Group, c/o Sam Sebaali, P.E., LEED® AP

05-21-28-0000-00-001

1429 West Orange Blossom Trail
1.00 +/- Acre

nmenc &
ickeby X
Trust
4int
*)
7). 77
<3(’lrj‘ )"77

Warren

E Lockeby 3‘

Sr.Trust N
1/4Int

T-Eleven
T-Eleven

:'50

Warren E

Lockeby
SrTrust
14Int

)7v 99

Subject
Property
1
'?753

VICINITY MAP

Lcckeby
Sr.Trust
1'4Int

777 9%

JestUs
Kids,
Inc

C-SquarelLLC

24231

35418

485

424

L

>
o .:».
(o]
Race Trac

Racetrac
Petrcleum Inc

= 15m

I H



;“E BATA
LOCATION: 1429 W. ORANGE BLOSSOM TRAIL, APOPKA, FLORIDA
LXSSUEEE z PROPERTY ZONING: c-2
PROPERTY FUTURE LAND USE DESIGNATION: COMMERCIAL
COMMERCIAL EXISTING USE: COMMERCIAL
3 GRAPHIC SCALE PROPOSED USE: COMMERCIAL—RESTAURANT
A :: » w W - PROJECT AREA: 1.00% ACRE
' w omevag  ZONING I — kgL 008 ARk MRl . skody
b3 ve. C~1 1"=80" PROPOSED GROSS FLOOR AREA: 2,263 S.F. 5.18 X
» s > c— Ra2" PROPOSED NO. OF SEATS: 54 SEATS
—-f— 1814w w2gy \ e o Hiw < PROPOSED NO, OF EMPLOYEES: A 10 EMPLOYEES
e, w8 T -—— 7 i’ PROPOSED HOURS OF OPERATION: 10:00AM TO 1:00AM
g : 3 = o / : (REOURED) (PROPOSCD)
- : @ | 2 L """,-"“ﬁ-,'—“—\ = 5 R.O.W. PARKING SETBACK 10' 16'
13 = 7 oF. N -
4 Do . i =2 > R & E BUILDING SETBACKS (REQUIRED) BUILDING SETBACKS (PROPOSED)
E G : S A FRONT (SOUTH) 10" FRONT .y
A © 4 o 5 mﬁ‘w‘ ; . \“* Loy S0¢ o o ey
S L BA P A o A2 & 8T D SR Regs. yoN REAR b3 RiAR @0y
- 3%, ey 43 ' < ~ y
7, s 7C L < Ty r 4 *;’ /T SO \‘\\ o MAXIMUM ALLOWABLE BUILDING HEIGHT BUILDING HEIGHT PROPOSED
4 > i O /, 23 X : ~
X ~ix ~ o ooy
E B\ o o \A NS BUILDING CONSTRUCTION TYPE
& & -y . g = e Y TYPE V=8 UNSPRINKLERED
- - — - - - /
TR T ﬁ_ 2 = Drve. T MAET 1a25E . P % g BUFFER YARDS REGUIRED
E) RS 4148w - S : \ N R M
[ | € ol ; 10.00 - 8 < D RESTAURANT  SIDC DAYCARE s s
g | bl S e RESTALRANT  SIOL VACANT s 8
& ! = RESTAURANT  REAR RESIDENTIAL 0 0
~— i ! cowenee crossws FUTURE FUTURE e o3
T ‘& W%« |AND USE LAND USE i PARKING = A -
= ' . /i3 i ) P 1 PER 4 SEATS) + (1 PER 7% S.7. PATRON AREA)
2 A COMMERCIAL ) COMMERCIAL = NV S o SR 4 SR ¢ (136 3F. / 75 $F) « 1555 0
| z 3 A & SPACES REQUIRED T0 BE RESTAVED FOR HANDICA® 1 SPacES
o ZONING ZONING & AT CARORD. sl Shadcs 28 sovces
€C—=2 C-1 "
= Syt S e R SITE AREA CALCULATIONS EXISTING PROPOSED
" = — B rorn igmer fmar  aa
e EPE L FS LA LR F s oy P
g 2 L L
* - P
s 71.45%
2 o w55 %
S 20 ZU
dt 3 (0 Ul
L FLOOD ZONE X PER FEMA FARM. PANEL 12085C0120F  OATED: 09/25/0%
S e mwe san0
@ SITE_CONSTRUCTION KEYNOTES WSITE_STRIPING & SIGNAGE KEYNOTES @SITE_DRAINAGE KEYNOTES
€. 6" HEAD CURB, TYPICAL S1. PROPERTY BOUNDARY. D1 FDOT. TYPL "C* DACH BOTTOM MNLET PER MDEX No. 233, TYPICAL e
CIA 12" HEAD CURE AT DRVE-THHU. S52. HANDICA® PARKING STALL. TYPICAL D3, DXISTING STORM MANMOLE TO REPLACE TOP AND GRATE AS TYPE C* INLET PER F.D.O.T. INDEX “232° - o e
€18, 6" ALUSH RIBBON CURS. 53 24" THERMOPLASTIC STOP BAR (WHITE PAIT) T
C1C 3' TRANSITION CURS. B5. DIECIONAL ANOWS PER FOOT. WODKNo. YI3A6. TYPCAL € DUMPSTER SHAL BE ENCLOSED WA A BLOCK WALL WIN GATES. SEE DUMPSTER OCTAL
2. ASPHALT PAVEMENT. MEAVY-DUTY N DRME AISLES 5. CROSSWALK STRPWG PER FD.OT. BIDEX Ne. 17348, TYPICAL
C2A ASPHALT PAVEMENT. LIGHT-DUTY M PARKING SPACES. 6 RI-1 WGH WTENSTY REFLECTORZED “STOP™ SION (24°24). SITE_NOTES
3. CONCRETE PAVEMENT. SOA N3-S WIOHT TURN GHLY" SION, MOWNTED ABOVE. 11 “STOR~ Sioa. . ML CURS MADI ARE 10 GE 5.0 TYPIAL UMLESS NOTED OTWERWSE DICEFTON: FADH @ SLANES
C4. CONCRETE SDEWALK, TYPICAL S 4" WIDE WHITE SOLD PAVEMENT STRIWNG. 2 LANDSCAPE SLAND NOSE NOT TO EXCEED THE PARKING STALL DEPTH &/OR PROTRUDE ITO
5. MONOUTHIC CURS & SOEWALK. TYPICAL S DOUBLE 4° WIE WHTE SOUD PAVEMENT STRIWG. SO TER, Tivans
CE. MANDICAP ACCESS RAMP WITH A 121 MAX. SLOPE TYPICAL S5 DRVE-THRU® GRAPHICS PAVEMENT MARKING. Af 3 mewlwww
C7. DETECTABLE WARMING SURFACE PER FLORIDA SLLDING CODE 200, SI0. DRVE-THRU ENTRY PORIAL CLEARANCE BAR
CB. DOUBLE DUMPSTER ENCLOSURE. SEE SMEET C-8 FOR DETALS 11 MENU BOARD, CANOPY AND SPEAKER BOX. ; — 20 SITE_LEGEND
5. WHEELSTOP PER FD.O.T. INDEX No. 300, TYPICAL /A 12 SPEED L 15 e s
C10. BOUARD. 6” WIN. CLP.-D1P. OR STEEL. COMCRITE FLLED, & PANTED OSHA YELLOW 513 RECLAM WATER SIGN. [ pmososen veawr ourv asmut swveves
C11. PROPOSED TRANSFORMER PAD. CONTRACTOR SHALL COORDINATE WITH POWER COMPANY. S WAIN MONUMENT SIGN. [T, coneere. pavevest
€12 PROPOSED GAS METER. CONTRACTOR SALL CODRDNATE WITH GAS COMPANY A
C13. 7,000 GAL GREASE TRAP, CITY OF APOPKA NOTES
FAN ST QLN O, TN 1. ALL ROADWAYS AND DRWES MUST BE COMPLETE BEFORE BULDING CONSTRUCTION BEGRS.
i v B 07s ISOMETRIC 2 A PR WYDRANT MUST BE LOCATED WITHIN 250 FELT OF THE BUILDNG.
c::m:mmmmm FRONT £L0VATION SIDE_ELEVATION 3 PROVIDE AN EMERGENCY LOCK BOX FOR EMERGENCY ACCESS
C17 MECUARL IRIATION WIEN WERR 4 THE WONUMENT SN SHOULD PARTIALLY EXTEND BEYOND THE LANDSCAPE AREA TO PROMOTE
18, NOT USED. - —— - e VISIBILTY, AND CAN BE PUACED AS CLOSE AS TWO FEET FROM THE SIDEWALX, R Y
€19 EXSTING MRE MYDRANT ASSEMBLY. Ll ' ACTURER'S SPECIFICATIONS. 5. THE WALL AND GROUND SIGNS ARE 1D BE PERMITIED SEPARATELY \ 'l,'
C20. DUSTING SANTTARY CLEAN=OUT m“iv'-.‘; e"’,
/A\ 52" BWE RACK 0N 630" CONCRETE o0 (3 9WES). WLD‘EM 5 4‘7"
C22. SIE UGHTING FIXTURE. ~ v .'.(/ ",
WOT VAUID FOR 7/10/2014 | /\ PER CITY OF APOPKA DATED 6/25/2014. [ RIA 1
TN WAESS  [5728/2014 | o\ PER Y OF APOPYA DATED 7/23/2014 ™ TACO BELL > =
SXGNED I THiS BLOCK (20 L) 5127 S. Orange Avenus, Sulte 200 L=
MINOR FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLANS FE % Ortando, FL 32808 s SITE GEOMETRY PLAN 2 2
Phone: 407-895-032: :
1429 W. ORANGE BLOSSOM TRAIL Fox 507 895.0325 Bl bics
=== g TS 7 A & o o
= — P - APOPKA, FLORIDA Engrosrng e Futre | wwwsopineas - | s&s
., 9/ '..’."...'G\e\\“
’ \
"l,,ONA L E“‘\\\‘

Frppagyair®



el ie—

GRAPHIC SCALE

N8BT 146w
G ooe™

" e =y

AJANNS SIML NI
TNATING LON

{ No2*1g:147g / THERE ARE NO EXISTING TREES SHOWN i
€61.08° T:g,)‘ z TO BE PRESERVED ON SITE. ) /
/ —t= /

TACO BELL CORPORATE NOTES:

GRAVEL MULCH SHALL BE CONTINUOUS TO EDGE OF STEEL BORDER & CONCRETE CURB. ALSO UNDER ALL PLANTS
PROVIDE WEED BARRIER UNDER GRAVEL MULCH

A wN -

21,830 SF.  50.00 X PROVIDE A INDUSTRY STANDARD DRIP IRRIGATION SYSTEM APPROPRIATE FOR THE SELECTED REGION AND PLANTING TYPES
5.208 S.F 7% PLANTS SHALL BE PLANTED PER REGIONAL BEST PRACTICES INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO SUPPORT, DEPTHWIDTH OF PLANTING HOLE AND
SOIL AMMENDEMENTS
5  SEE SHEET C1.0 AND C1.1 FOR ADDITIONAL TACO BELL SPECIFIC DETAILS INCLUDING THE MENU BOARD, ENTRY PORTALL AND OCB/ICANOPY.
w €  BOULDER COUNT: (5) &, (5) 12", (3) 18", (2) 24",
MAPLE 12,14,14,14 54"
OAK  6,8,12,14,20,20,30(SPECIMEN) 110" LANDSCAPE SCHEDULE ® S L I
CAMPHOR  48,60,60 168" s
BANYAN 12 12" e e e T B -ty oS -
PALM 10,14 24"
e o s O el o=, | g2 | 0 e = AT
TOTAL ELIGIBLE TREES: 164" e
, O~ & | == | | g | e
0 DRESS, AND S0D AREAS THAT WAVE BEEN DISTURBED IREE _CALCULATIONS P i = E
ey ol AR W T TOTAL TREE INCHES ON-SITE: 164" A; == ot ) B
- TOTAL TREE INCHES REMOVED: 164" - e :
 EEIHRSASIEESELIILS || umlosDen o [== [ =T [-[=
T2 AL PUWT WTERAS SKAL RECOW A SLOW ROIASE FIRTLZER I QUANTITES A5 DRECTED Ay F?S?%’EO:“?;;.N" CALCULATIONS: 43380--8000-(YlF) ? = | oo | WS | TR P v | o=
QUANTITY OF SPECIMEN TREES (24"+) REMOVED: 1 © 30"
WSS PRI Tkl Bt T T OM N OO A OR PSSR, S SITE CLEARING AREA IN SF AND ACRES: 43560 SF (1.0 ACRES) Ol == | w=n |75 e s | .
O |w| BNk | wowem Fou we e - “‘:Dlm
O || ' TS0 | weoun [PRE" = o
© | w |mupmon | mme TRET
O|v | SN0 | m= |'® -
%
710714 | Ty T WA s
. "
%'E: i e : TACO BELL 5127 S. Orange Avenue, Sulte 200 S:ﬂ e
MINOR FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLANS FE %&gmm Orando, 32808 SITE LANDSCAPE PLAN ok
1429 W. ORANGE BLOSSOM TRAIL Fax 407-8950325 x =
OESIGNED BT DRAWN BY —
o —~ VSO = ECKED | APOPKA, FLORIDA Engineering the Future woww feg-nc.us RTA RTA R
- O I
‘ ‘ . ok \’ :‘
0‘ ‘ **0encer” * &

- - o



e e ——
CONCAVE TOF \ DACP ROD - ¥ DIA X2 LONG | | 5
CONCRETE SURFACE L 1150 V2 VIIZAG ST, — 2\
p GATE LEAF) \ | N
| 12 18 GA METAL DECX ————————\ | e .
7 STEEL PPE FILED W)~ % \ | &l T PoROME—= S # PPE FLLED W CONCRETE. ——,
CONCRETE. PRVED \ 5% 4% U4 METAL ANGLE N . TOP OF PRE. € ABOVE SLAB \
AND PAINTED SAPETY N\ FRAME 4 SDES §A GATE ——————y | CONC. FOOTING —— \ SEE DETAL 7 \
henuecsdin e 8 2 PAR MCKINNEY TABITE! \ \
. MINGES EA GATE WELOED TO &) 4
GATE & POST ~ 0
GROUT BOUD W CONCRETE N |
NI - -
= ‘ = i!
=1
[ o
N o !l
CSVENT BAR 4 N AT DR AR T @ | z
@woc % O.C VERT_ 8OLT ‘ = ’! £
S TOT.5 WIACORN NUT )
5 HONZ BARS = M G TS |
 TOP & WO HGT <€
Py -
e — FXSEUC TS WIESX '5 t
CMU waLL & CAP PLATE EMBEDED a
1T NTO FOOTNG 0
. B o {
NOT USED = | 11 JAMB DETAIL = | &
GATE_NOTES:
21 EOUAL (2007 WIDE » 60" HIGH MTL. GATES, TYPE B'1 177 DECKING. 20GA W/ TS
5X5X 1475 BAR CROSS BRACING WELD AND GRIND SMOOTH ALL CONECTIONS,
TYP WAME AND PAINT COLOR T0 MATCH PLASTER
GATE_HARDWARE:
1 ALL HARDWARE AND ACCESSORIES SHALL BE HEAVY GALYMNIED |
7 GATESTOP - MUSHROOM TYPE OR FLUSH PLATE WATH ANCHORS SET 4 CONCAETE L ol it
TC ENGAGE THE CONTER OFIOP ROD OR PLUNGER BAR ’ i
*
0341 QALY FRAME & $
TIPE B 1 2 DECKING ! - $
TACK WELD TO Fe \ / | g
DE™ / | §
> o THCKPOC SABW — & THOKPCE SUBW — E
FOCONT EW & FUCONT EW O
«Qoroc «00C &
L O —— W,
FASTEN | WELD TO s
GATE FRAVE - TV
NOT USED w15 |12 NOTUSED 5 | 8 ot MDD PLAN VIEW i | 1
@ LAICH PAME AND PART ALL METAL SUDE BOLT g
WORK TO MATOH BLOCK Wall.
14024.000
PAINT INSDE TO MATCH 18 GA CLEANED. PRMVED
/T auDG . SONY PANT 8 PAINTED METAL GATE — PROVIDE SIUCCO
/ e DXTERI0A WTH Y
INTEGRAL COLOR 10
y . MATOH OV ON . .
1 oo T
PASAIN'TE 1 ﬁ—
17 NIO FOOTG q
‘ - -
C CONTRACT DATE 00002014
BULDNGTYPE  LVE MAS MED 54
FLANVERSION wch 213G
STE MABER 000000
] . e — STORE NUVGKR o
NOT USED = |13 ELEVATION ~: | 9 ELEVATION s [2]| ——
SO0 GROUT AL TACO BELL
— SOUD GROUT ALL 7
CORES
#5 HORIZ BAR 1O (TYF ) e T
) 5 BN TE T #5 VERT Bans
—— PAINT INSIDE O MATCH = Y= = #5 BARS @ 45 OC CONT T
BLDG - FPONY PANT m”m“f‘w — B X6 SPUTFACE e WALL & INTO FTG. Wi 3 HOOK.
INTEGRA. COLOR 0 by —— EXEX IS CMUWAL
. B . MATCHOMUON ) MWWW
3 - FOOTING 17 ATTACH . bt
O™ -
LAC N T < - u»gx:'.:vev LIVE MAS
SADONE Sy L o e o) eI
ARG S W 00, BASE W $4CONT € THC P.CC SUBONT
SUCONT EW =3 EW &4000 AGO. BASE W/ #4CONT
@e&a0C { EwSsgQC
| \ oel | . i
> “RE ) Ll ==
* b
' » .3 T |
v b ‘
4
.
L >
= m— — — — 1 notmme
ELEVATION "': | 10 GATE DETAILS s | § SECTION "= | 4 SECTION s | 3




23-7 2

7.0. STONE TOWER

2.

T.0. STATWALL

| 2412

T.0. PARAPET FRAMING
(BEYOND)

TACO BELL

RS E. Wachia, KS 67211
nm.ummu
NO. AA-26001352

GLMV Achite
FLOMIDA

B it e
BOTTOM OF WINDOW

40

i g
T.0.5tA8

RIGHT SIDE ELEVATION 1+~ l A

QTY| ITEM DESCRIPTION

ELEc]

(R) BASE THICKNESS - 1* THICK ELF S.

pameercan 3] A SEE SHT A1.1 WINDOW TYPES" FOR WINDOW ELEVATIONS. - 12144.120
B. SEE SCOPE OF WORK FOR V350 | 1 |TACO BELL DRNE THAU CANOPY X (®) BASE THICKNESS - 2 THCKELFS. 8
C. "HIGH IMPACT® MESH SHALL BE USED WHERE NOTED V363 | 1| SLAT WALL AND ALUMINUM VALANCE
D. THE PAINT COLORS SHOWN ARE COLOR REFERENCES FOR THE E.LF 5. SUPPLIER = (© BASE THICKNESS -1* THICK E.LF.S. WITH HIGH IMPACT MESH (ONLY WHERE NOTED)
SLATWALL £ ELF.S. TEXTURE SHALL BE FINE. SEE DETAIL 2/A6.2.
BY VENDOR A
BASE THICKNESS -2 THICK ELF.S. WITH HIGH IMPACT MESH (ONLY WHERE NOTED).
14 EIFS BEHIND SEE DETAL 2/A6.2. — T S
SLATWALL ‘SEALERS (REFERTO SPECS):
A SEALANT AT ALL WALL AND ROOF PENETRATIONS. A
B. SEALANT AT ALL WINDOW AND DOOR FRAMES AT HEAD AND JAMB. DO NOT SEAL SILL @ R
ALUMNUM VALANCE C. APPLY NEOPRENE GASKET (CONT) BETWEEN BUILDING & CANOPY/TRELLSS. e o
Lo THICKNESS s | B
LecenD, E.LF.S. e
e 7/// A. VENDOR SCOPE INCLUDES SUPPLY AND INSTALLATION OF AWNINGS, A
2 - Q CANOPIES, AND SIGNAGE. ﬁ
BOTTOM OF VALANCE 4
K0 ATY | ITEM DESCRIPTION ELEC
B, DENOTES 2 THICK EFFS
2 EIFS, HIGH IMPACT ONTRACT DATE: X0
WHERE SHOWN ON V348 | 3| TACO BELL LETTERS 12" FIGH, WHITE, FLAT FAGED X ¢ PIE i
ELEVATIONS o s V322 | 1| TACO BELL BELL SIGN 4-10 1/29 x 46 1/4'H X BUILDING TYPE:  LIVE MAS MED 40
WIDTH TO ENSURE COORDINATION WITH STANDARD o LED VERSION: March 2013
VSR PR ¥ Loewc. o
SITE NUMBER: 310106
+ REQUIRES ELECTRICAL CONNECTION. SEE ELECTRICAL PLANS. o it e
SLAT WALL COLOR TRANSITION ~1s I 1 EIFS THICKNESS COLOR TRANSITION nis. l G GENERAL NOTES l F | CANOPY AND BLDG. ACCENT SCHED. s I E SIGN SCHEDULE s l c B
D BUILDING SIGN, SEE SCOPE OF WORK. &
. SEE SHEET A1.0AND AY.1. .- - 1154 ROCK SPRINGS RD.
(2 DANE THAU WINDOW WALL S+ALL BE FINISHED PRIOR TO INSTALLATION OF SWITCHGEAR. APOPKA, FL

SYMBOL AREA MANUFACTURER COLOR ALTERNATE MFR. | ALTERNATE COLOR | CONTACT INFORMATION
1 MAIN BUILDING COLOR SHERWIN WILLIAMS SW 5122 °CAMEL BACK® LOTUSAN NADB-0011 %ﬁm WW&D&Z‘W'MWSM.
Ll HARRINGTON@SHERWIN
[2] | wawcoLonaernD SCREEN WALL SHERWINWILLIAMS | SW 6831 ‘CLEMATIS® e
— STO CORP.: TIM SALERNO, 800-828-2738 X6502 (PHONE), 321-878-0267 (FAX), TSALERNO@STOCORP.COM
[3] | Accentcowon SHERWINWILLIAMS | SW 2823 ROOKWOOD CLAY" LOTUSAN NADB-0010 OWNER REPRESENTATNE WILL IDENTIEY  LOTUSAN PAINT WALL BE USED.
[4] | staTwaLLAND vALANCE COLOR VENDOR SW 7034 'STATUS BRONZE® (EQUAL)
5 PARAPET CAP COLOR (@D DUROLAST MEDIUM BRONZE (FACTORY FINISH) | SHERWINWILLIAMS |  SW 7060 TRON ORE" | DURO-LAST: LEE COBB, 800-434-3876 (PHONE)
STONE WALL BORAL -VERSASTONE | TIGHT CUT - * PLUM CREER" OWENS CORNING | IDAHO DRY STACK, | VERSETTA STONE WALL: GENE GUETZOW, 262-215-8373 (PHONE)
CARMEL MOUNTAN
CULTURED STONE | ALTERNATE:
VENEER OWENS CORNING: KATHY MANNON, 866-315-5081 (PHONE), KATHY.MANNONGOWENSCORNING. COM
[7] | srorerrontwinoows 8D * DARK BRONZE®
[8] | peeeouaros STREET SMART YELLOW - 14" THICK PLASTIC COVER (US POSTMAN,COM) OR EQUAL
[9] PARAPET BACK ROOFING DUROLAST THE COLOR SHALL BE FACTORY COLORED TAN.* EQUAL ALTERNATE ALLOWED., DURQ-LAST; LEE COB8, 800-434-3876 (PHONE)

(3 ROOF BEYOND.

@ STOREFRONT TYPICAL.

& pousLE DOOR.

CED SWITCH GEAR, PAINT TO MATCH WALL.

(@D ARCHITECTURAL ALUMINUM VALANCE BY VENDOR,

@ LIGHT SCONCE. ALIGN BOTTOM OF FIXTURE'S MOUNTING BRACKET WITH
CHANGE IN EIFS THICKNESS (CENTER OF BRACKET AT 9-2).

(3D ASSUME D/T LANE SURFACE IS 6 BELOW THE FINISH FLOOR.
REFER TO GRADING & SITE PLAN.

2 EIFS TO TERMINATE AT HEIGHT
POINT. SLOPE TRANSITION AWAY FROM BUILDING 1:12.

GD eFs(YP). SEE284A62.

(:) PARAPET COPING. IF DURO-LAST EDGE TRIM IS USED. USE THE DURO-LAST
PRE-FINISHED EDGE TRIM. SEE DETAIL 2/A6.0.

(33 CO2FILLER VALVE & COVER. SEE DETAL 5/A6.2 SIM

G2 EFS REVEAL JONT

(i) SCUPPER, COLLECTOR, AND VERTICAL DOWNSPOUT 6" MIN.
PAINT TO MATCH ADJACENT WALL.

OVERFLOW SCUPPER.

RTU BEYOND. PAINT TO MATCH MAIN BUILDING COLOR.

(20> BREAK METAL COVER OVER WOOD STUDS TO MATCH STOREFRONT. SEE 3.4 & 7/A6.1
(G HIGH IMPACT ELF.5, WHERE SHOWN ON ELEVATIONS. SEE 262

(ZZ) ALUMINUM SLAT WALL BY VENDOR.

@& esouamn

(::) DUROLAST SINGLE MEMBRANE ROOFING OR EQUAL.

TOP OF WINDOW PROVIDE 1* EFS ABOVE THAT (250 ¥ THE DURD LAST PARAPET CAP TRIM IS USED IT SHALL NOT BE PAINTED.

RETURN ALUMINUM LOUVERS BACK TO FACE OF BUILDING.

EXTERIOR FINISH SCHEDULE [ n

-—
LIVE MAS

EXTERIOR
ELEVATIONS

A4.0

PLOT DATE:




21718
PARAPET

QRise —

w2z
T.0. COOLER
PARAPET CAP

g4

EFS THICKNESS
TRANSITION

TAGCO BELL

s A
T.0. STONE TOWER

RIGHT SIDE ELEVATION - | A

M s
T.0. STONE TOWER

B e o
BOTTOM OF WINDOW

Qs — —

e RO
T.0. SUAT WALL

N TN

TACO BELIL

Qe
PARAPET CAP

Co T
EIFS THICKNESS
TRANSITION

oo
T.0.50AB

201012,
PARAPET CAP

—__—“Ers‘LEngQ

a2y,

PARAPET CAP

EEPN
BOTTOM OF CANOPY

FRONT ELEVATION <-'o | C

REAR ELEVATION ~-o | B

41

ur

1525 £ Dougles Wichita, KS 67211
FLORDA LCENGE NG, Ak:20001252

Tkt (316) 2058367 Fax: (3146) 2055640

GLMV A rchitect

12144.120

CONTRACT DATE: XXX
BUILDING TYPE:  LIVE MAS MED 40
PLAN VERSION: March 2013
SITE NUMBER: 310105
STORE NUMBER: 423862

TACO BELL

1154 ROCK SPRINGS RD.
APOPKA, FL

4

|
LIVE MAS

EXTERIOR
ELEVATIONS

A4.1

PLOT DATE:




	Top
	1 08-12-14 - PC - Minutes - Approval of 7-8-14 PC minutes
	PC 07-08-14 Minutes.pdf

	1. 08-12-14 - PC - Public Hearing - Variance - Loaves &amp; Fishes, 206 E. 8th Street
	1 Loaves and Fishes -Variance PC 08-12-14.pdf
	2 Applicant Responses to Criteria.pdf
	3 Loaves and Fishes Site Plan.pdf
	4 Loaves and Fishes Landscape Plan.pdf
	5 Elevations.pdf

	1. 08-12-14 - PC - Site Plan - Final Development Plan - Taco Bell - 1429 WOBT
	1 Taco Bell - 1429 OBT FDP PC 08-12-14 Revised.pdf
	2 Site_Landscape_Dumpster Encl Plans.pdf
	3 Building Elevations.pdf

	Bottom

